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CHAIRMAN'’S FOREWORD

On behalf of the Authority, it is with great pleasure that | present our Annual
Report for 2015, a year of further strong growth in the demand for electricity
and water, and corresponding increases in production to meet demand. The

main highlights of 2015 are as follows:

i The number of electricity Customer accounts in the Sultanate increased by 73,245, or 7.9% 927,184
in 2014 to 1,000,429. Residential customers accounted for 71% of the increase in accounts. Since the
2005 market restructuring the number of electricity accounts increased by 470,178 or 88.7%;

ii. Electricity Supply in 2015 reached 28.9 TWh,14.9% higher than in 2014 and 204% higher than in 2005;

iii. The Authority’s measure of electricity Intensity (MWh per account) reached 28.9 in 2015, higher than
2014 by 6.6% and 61% higher than in 2005. Increasing intensity is an important driver of electricity
demand that has implications for costs and subsidy. If the 1,000,429 registered accountsin 2015 had
the same average intensity as in 2005, electricity supply in 2015 would have been 38%, or 10.96 TWh
lower with corresponding reductions in costs and subsidy;

iv. Sector gas use increased by 4.2% in 2015 to support increases in gross electricity and water production
of 12.4% and 18.2%, respectively. RAEC consumed about 239,825,000 litres of diesel in 2015 to support
increases in electricity and water production of 14.1% and 16.9%, respectively;

V. Technical and non-technical losses accounted for 10.2% of total units entering electricity systems
in the Sultanate in 2015, a decrease on reported losses of 11.6% in 2014. MIS losses decreased from
11.6% in 2014 to 10% in 2015, RAEC losses increased from 9.2% in 2014 to 10.7% in 2015, and Dhofar
Power System losses increased slightly from 12.2% in 2014 to 12.3% in 2015;

Vi, Total electricity and water sector employment (Direct and Contractor employees) fell by 4.4% in
2015, reflecting a 2.2% increase in Direct employment (from 2,825 to 2,888) and a 7.3% decrease in
Indirect employment (from 6,322 to 5,860). The 2015 overall electricity and water sector Omanisation
rate was 64%;

vii.  The Authority issued no new Customer Complaint Determination in 2015, and resolved 92 outstanding
complaints on the basis of policy precedents established in 69 previously issued Determinations;

vii. In 2015 Eng Hilal Al Ghaithi, Deputy Director of Customer Affairs completed an MSc in Renewable
Energy and Power Systems Management at the City University London passing with Distinction, an
excellent result for which we congratulate Hilal. Also, Bushra Al Maskari, Regulatory Advisor in the
Office of the Executive Director completed a MSc of Public Policy Programme at the University of
Oxford passing with Merit, a result for which we offer Bushra our sincere congratulation;

iX. In March 2015 the Council of Ministers approved the appointment of the Authority’s fifth Member, Eng
Saleh bin Hamood Al Rashdi;
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X. The electricity sector benefited from OMR 454.4 million of support from the Ministry of Finance in 2015:
OMR 344.2 million of MIS subsidy, OMR 67.4 million of RAEC subsidy and OMR 42.8 million Rial Omani
of Dhofar Power System subsidy.

Xi. Electricity licensees approved 520 electricity related projects in 2015 with a total value of OMR 335.9
million, these projects will support the provision of electricity services in all of the Sultanate’s regions;
and

xii. ~ The cost of regulating the electricity and water sector in 2015 was around OMR 3.2 per Customer
account, around one tenth of one baiza per kWh Supplied and less than 0.25% of total electricity
and water sector turnover, metrics we believe compare favourably to international benchmarks of

regulatory costs.

Members would particularly like to acknowledge with thanks the hard work of Authority staff who contributed
to and are responsible for the activities and work described in this report. Members and staff of the Authority
express their sincere gratitude to His Majesty Sultan Qaboos bin Said for his vision, guidance and leadership
and fo His Majesty’s government for their continuing support.

Dr. Amer Bin Saif Al Hinai
Chairman
Authority for Electricity Regulation, Oman




e ANNUAL REPORT 2015

Electricity and Water Sector Market Structure

1. Main Interconnected System

Wadi Al Jizzi PC SAOC. 325 netMW

Al Ghubrah P&DC SAOC. 430 netMW
37 MIGD

Muscat Electricity Distribution
Company SAOC
Oman Power & Water 2015 Supply: 10,104 GWh
Foturaman Accouns” 3505
Company SAOC

ACWA P&DC SAOG. 435 netMW
30 MIGD

Sohar P&DC SAOG. 585 netMW Majan Electricity Company
33 MIGD SAOC

SMN Barka P&DC SAOG. 677 netMW

26 MIGD 2015 Supply: 7,858 GWh

Accounts: 198,005
Al Batinah PC SAOG. 741 netMW
Oman Electricity
Al Sawadi PC SAOG. 741 netMW Transmission o
Company SAOC Q/XJOZ%OH Electricity Company
Phoenix PC SAOG. 2000 netMW
2015 Supply: 7,550 GWh
Muscat DC SAOG. 42 MIGD Accounts: 366,7] 6
Qurayyat DC SAOC. 2017 44 MIGD
Barka IWP 2018 61.8 MIGD

Sohar IWP 2018 55 MIGD

2. Rural Systems

Rural Areas Electricity Company SAOC
Distribution & Supply

Transmission .
274 netMW  69.4 MIGD ggl%iupp\y 816 GWh  Accounts:

Generation/Desalination

Bahwan Astonfield Solar PC 303 netkW

Musandam IPP 2017 120 netMW

3. Dhofar Power System

Oman Power & Water Dhofar Power Company SAOC
Dhofar GC SAOC. 273 netMW Procurement Company

SAOC
Sembcorp Salalah P&DC SAOC. 2015 Supply: 2,583 GWh

445 netMW 18 MIGD — Accounts:  92.718
Oman Electricity

Salalah 2 IPP 2018 445 netMW Transmission Company
SAOC

Sources: MIS & Dhofar 2015 Capacities from PWP 7-Year Statement (Issue 9), other data AER

The Sector Law designates certain activities as regulated activities and requires persons seeking to
undertake such activities to be authorised by the Authority fo do so. Further details of the new market
structure and its regulation are available at www.aer-oman.org.
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Electricity & Water Sector Activity and Statistics

Customer Accounts: 2014 and 2015

The number of registered electricity customer accounts in the Sultanate increased by 7.9% in 2015
from 927,184 in 2014 to 1,000,429. The MIS accounted for 85.2% of the increase in accounts, same as
reported in 2014 (85.2% in 2014), RAEC accounted for 3.1% of the increase (3.9% in 2014) and DPC
for 11.7% of the increase (10.7% in 2014). Please refer to Figure 1 below and Table 1 of Annex C for
further details.

Figure 1: Registered Customer Accounts by Company: 2014 & 2015

73,245
62,371
Net change in 2283 8,591
Registered d
Customer Mazoon ‘ RAEC ‘ DPC ‘ Oman
Accounts:
2014 to 2015 Main Interconnected System ‘ Rural Systems ‘Dhofar System
Muscat Majan Mazoon
2014 Accounts 284,625 186,605 340,923 812,153 30,904 84,127 927,184
2015 Accounts 309,803 198,005 366,716 874,524 33,187 92,718 1,000,429
net change in Accounts 25,178 11,400 25,793 62,371 2,283 8,591 73,245
% change in Accounts 8.8% 6.1% 7.6% 7.7% 7.4% 10.2% 7.9%

Source: Company returns

For the Sultanate as a whole, Residential customers accounted for 71.0% of the 73,245 increase in
accounts and Commercial customers for 25.5% of the increase.

Residential customers accounted for 74.8% of all customer accounts in 2015.
Electricity Supply: 2014 and 2015

Total electricity supply in the Sultanate increased by 3.7 TWh in 2015 from 25.2 TWh in 2014 to 28.9
TWh, an increase of 14.9% following the 10.4% increase in 2014. MIS supply increased by 15.5% (or
3.4TWh) in 2015, accounting for 91.3% of the total (3.7 TWh) growth in supply. RAEC supply was 9.3%
higher than in 2014, reflecting strong growth in supply to Residential, Industrial and Commercial
customers. DPC supply growth of 11.0% in 2015 was higher than the 9.8% increase in 2014. See Figure
2 below and Table 2 of Annex C for further details.
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Figure 2: Electricity Supply by Company: 2014 & 2015

3,414,910 3,740,382
1,415,127
: . 1,155,051 844733
ncrease in 256,172
MWh Supplied: 69,301 S
2014 to 2015
Muscat Mazoon | RAEC | DPC | Oman
Main Interconnected System Rural System: Dhofar
System
Muscat Majan Mazoon MIS RAEC DPC Oman
2014 MWh 8,688,583 6,703,410 6,705,708 22,097,701 747,119 2,327,270 25,172,090
2015 MWh 10,103,710 7,858,460 7,550,441 25,512,611 816,420 2,583,442 28,912,474
net change in MWh 1,415,127 1,155,051 844,733 3,414,910 69,301 256,172 3,740,382
% change in MWh 16.3% 17.2% 12.6% 15.5% 9.3% 11.0% 14.9%

Source: Company returns

Residential customers accounted for 47.6% of total supply in 2015, compared to a 55.2% share in
2005.

Figure 3 compares the 2015 increases in accounts and supply by customer category. Residential
customers accounted for 71.0% of the 73,245 increase in accounts, but for just 48.1% of the 3.7 TWh
increase in Supply. Commercial customers accounted for 25.5% of the accounts increase and for
19.7% of the Supply increase. Industrial customers accounted for 14.3 % of the increase in Supply
while the number of Industrial accounts slightly reduced.

Figure 3: 2015 Increases in Accounts & Supply by Customer Category

/ Accounts: + 73,245 Supply: + 3.740 TWh \

Industrial, .
-0.2% Commercial, Commercial,
25.5% 19.7%

Industrial,
14.3%

Agriculture &
Fisheries, 1.1%

Residential, 71.0% Agriculture &

Fisheries, 0.7% Hotels /

Tourism, 0.3%

Hotels / Tourism,
0.04%

Government &
MOD, 8.0%

Residential,
48.1%
Government &
MOD, 2.5%

Source: Company returns

The structure of electricity demand in Oman contfinues to change as the rate of growth in supply
to Industrial and Commercial customers exceeds that to other customer categories. Industrial and
Commercial customers accounted for 36.2% of total supply in 2015, up from 23% in 2005. Supply
to Majan’s Commercial and Industrial customers accounted for 55% of Majan’s total 2015 supply,
compared to just 21% in 2005, 40% in 2010, and 50% in 2011.

Figure 4 presents electricity Supply by tariff category for each of the three market segments in 2014
and 2015.

Figure 5 presents registered customer accounts by tariff catergory & Systerm in 2014 and 2015.
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Electricity Supply per Account: 2014 & 2015

Electricity intensity (MWh per account) increased by 6.6% in 2015, from 27.1in 2014 to 28.9 MWh per account.
Customers of electricity suppliers in the Sultanate registered increased electricity intensity in 2015: MIS
customers registered a 7.2% increase, RAEC customers a 1.8% increase and DPC customers a 0.7% increase.
Please refer to Figure 6 and Table 3 of Annex C for further details.

Figure 6: MWh Supplied per Registered Account: 2014 & 2015

3.8 2.0 1.8
0.4 0.2
Change in MWh = 1
Supplied per Mazoon RAEC DPC ‘ Oman
Account:
Main Interconnected System Rural Systems| ~ Dhofar
2014 to 2015 System
Muscat Majan Mazoon MIS RAEC DPC Oman

2014 MWh Supply/per Acct 30.5 35.9 19.7 27.2 24.2 27.7 27.1
2015 MWh Supply/per Acct 32.6 39.7 20.6 29.2 24.6 27.9 28.9
net change MWh S/per Acct 2.1 3.8 0.9 2.0 0.4 0.2 1.8
% change in MWh S/per Acct 6.8% 10.5% 4.7% 7.2% 1.8% 0.7% 6.4%

Source: Company returns

The increase in electricity intensity, reflects continued strong growth in Supply to Industrial, Commercial and
Government customers in 2015. Electricity intensity is an increasingly important driver of electricity demand.
Figure 7 shows that between 2005 and 2015 the average electricity intensity of all customers increased by 61%
with significant variation in intensity changes across customer categories.

Figure 7: Changes in Electricity Intensity between 2005 and 2015

MWh/Account 2005 2015 9% change

Residential 12.8 18.4 44% [l 44%

Industrial 1,561.5 5,089.9 226% il 226%
Commercial 17.2 28.3 64% L] 64%

Agriculture & Fisheries 41.4 47.4 14% M 14%

Government & MOD 75.5 106.0 40% b 0%

All Categories 17.9 28.9 61% | 61%

The 226% increase in Industrial customer intensity reflects increased supply to a relatively small number of
new Industrial customers who are large consumers of electricity. Industrial customers actually account for
a smaller proportion of the overall increase in intensity shown in Figure 7 than Residential and Commercial
customers, whose intensity in 2015 was 44% and 64% higher, respectively, than in 2005 and who accounted
for 67.4% of total 2015 Supply, compared to the 16.3% share of Industrial customers.

Increasing intensity is an important driver of electricity demand that has implications for costs and subsidy. If
the 1,000,429 registered accountsin 2015 had the same average intensity as in 2005, electricity supply in 2015
would have been 38% or 10.96 TWh lower with corresponding reductions in costs and subsidy.

The Authority does not consider intensity increases of this magnitude to be sustainable and continues to
believe that the infroduction of Cost-Reflective Tariffs (for large Industrial, Commercial and Government
customers) coupled with the implementation of measures to improve energy efficiency will help to reduce
the electricity intensity of all customers.
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Electricity and Water Production: 2014 & 2015

2015 gross electricity production of 32.7 TWh was 12.4% higher than in 2014. The 32.1 TWh of net electricity
generation (including PWP and RAEC purchases) was 13.2% higher than in 2014. Both, gross and net water
production increased by 18.2% and 18.5% (to 249.53 million m® and 246.3 million m®respectively). Please refer
to Figure 8 and Table 6 of Annex C for further details.

Figure 8: Electricity & Water Production by System & Zones: 2014 & 2015

% Changes in production: 2014 to 2015

M Electricity W Water

21.6% 21.9%

16.9% 15.6% 17.5%

12.6% 14.1% 10.9%
_—
-7.8% -7.8%
‘ Gross production Net production ‘ Gross production Net production ‘ Gross production ‘ Net production ‘
‘ MIS / 1SZ Rural Systems / Rural Zones ‘ Dhofar System / Dhofar Zone ‘
Electricity GWh Water '000 m3
System ttem BTSN oo SO v
MIS /1SZ Gross production 25,544.2 28,772.3 12.6% 184,975.3 = 224926.7  21.6%
Net production 24,993.1 28,333.6 13.4% 181,973.3 221,891.7 21.9%
Rural Systems / Rural Zones Gross production 756.7 863.1 14.1% 2,397.5 2,801.6 16.9%
Net production 698.1 807.0 15.6% 2,236.6 2,627.2 17.5%
Dhofar System / Dhofar Zones Gross production 2,836.2 3,122.6 10.1% 23,652.7 21,804.0 -7.8%
Net production 2,651.7 2,941.7 10.9% 23,652.7 21,804.0 -7.8%
Total Oman Gross production 29,1371 32,758.0 12.4% 211,025.5 249,532.3 = 18.2%
Net production 28,342.9 32,082.3 13.2% 207,862.6 = 246,322.8 = 18.5%

Source: Company returns

MIS gross generation was 12.6% higherin 2015 thanin 2014, RAEC generation was 14.1% higher and generation
for the Dhofar Power System was 10.1% higher. The net desalinated water production in the Interconnected
and Shargiyah Zones (ISZ) increased by 21.9% in 2015 which accounted for 0% of the 2015 increase in fotal
Water production in 2015. Net water production in the Rural Zones increased by 17.5% increase from 2014.
Alternate (the net production of the Dhofar Zone decreased by 7.8% in 2015 than in 2014, which accounted
for 8.9% of the 2015 increase in total water production in Oman).
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EWS Fuel Use in 2015
Natural Gas

The electricity and water sector consumed 4.2% more gas in 2015 than in 2014, compared to an increase of
12.4% and 18.2% in electricity and water production, respectively, please refer to Figure 9. The specific gas
consumption of MIS connected facilities fell to 256 Sm3/MWh in 2015 from 278 Sm3/MWh in 2014 (a 7.9%
reduction), and is 28% lower than in 2005.

Figure 9: Gas Consumption at Major Production Facilities: 2014 & 2015

<
by
=

m2014  ®2015

1,259
1,241

Gas used for
electricity and

wategg;zd;c;g&: ACWA Barka Ghubrah Al Kamil Al Rusail Wadi Jizzi* Sohar IWPP SMN Barka Batinah Sohar II | Suwadi Barka III | Phoenix Sur IPP Salalah IWPP
Main Interconnected System (Gas Consumption) Dhofar System

Production Facility: ACWABarka ~ Ghubrah  AlKamil  AlRusail Manah  WadiJizzi* Sohar IWPP  SMN Barka Ba“"a;‘l Sty S“"’E":I‘Isz"ka P"°EI';‘; <L d Salalah PP "“;3;2‘,?"" S:fmgf,h Total
Fuel
2014 gas use: Sm3 106 757 1,054 417 1,259 366 204 956 343 704 619 430 331 455 - - 7,896
2015 gas use: Sm3 10”6 826 865 194 1,241 419 149 941 368 770 712, 890 367 483 - - 8,226
% of total 2015 gas use 10% 11% 2% 15% 5% 2% 11% 4% 9% 9% 11% 4% 6% - - 100%
% change in gas use 9.2% -18.0% -53.5% -1.5% 14.5% -27.1% -1.6% 7.3% 9.3% 15.0% 107.3% 10.9% 6.2% = = 4.2%
% change in Gross Electricity and Gross Water Output: 2015 to 2014
Electricity 11.5% -13.1% -53.3% -0.3% 17.3% -27.5% -4.0% -5.7% 14.0% 21.3% 184.2% 13.2% 8.5% - - 12.4%
Water 24.0% -16.2% -2.0% 1.0% -7.8% = = 18.3%

Source: PWP & Company returns
* Wadi Jizzi Power Plant only, excludes OMCO units

** Muscat CitylWP & Sharayiyah Sur IWP plants, no direct gas utilization.

EWS Activity by Region: 2015

While all regions of Oman benefitted from electricity and water sector activity in 2015, activity is heavily
concentrated in Muscat, North Batinah and South Batinah. These three areas accounted for 69% of 2015
electricity production, 79% of water production, 67% of supply, 56% of customer accounts and 54% of sector
related employment in 2015.

Figure 10 presents details of the regional distribution of electricity and water sector activities in 2015.
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System Losses

Outturn 2015 data of units supplied and units entering electricity systems imply that MIS losses, which accounts
for approximately 90% of the total share of electricity supply in Oman, decreased from 11.6% in 2014 to 10.0%
in 2015, RAEC losses increased from 9.2% in 2014 to 10.7% in 2015, and Dhofar Power System losses increased
slightly from 12.2% in 2014 to 12.3% in 2015.

Figure 11 shows annual MIS losses reductions since 2005.

Figure 11: Technical and non-technical Losses in the MIS

40% 38.4%
A MIIS losses pre restructuring [0 MIS Losses post restructuring T

35%

2004 MIS losses

--------- 1997 to 2004 losses trend

30%

24.6%

L i

\1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004} 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
|

Pre restructuring Post restructuring

3% | e

20%

% Losses

15%

10%

5%

0%

Source: Pre restructuring data from MHEW reports, post restructuring data from the Authority

The significant losses reductions achieved since the sector restructuring in 2005 reflects the application of a
clear incentive based price control mechanism and the constructive responses of licenses.

Losses reductions are of considerable economic value in terms of achieved and future cost savings. If the
cost saving of a 1 MWh reduction in losses is OMR 10, the reduction in MIS losses from 11.6% in 2014 to 10.0%
in 2015 returned benefits of around OMR 4 million (the benefit is OMR 41.2 million if assessed against 2004
losses of 24.6%). The cumulative value of MIS losses reductions since 2004 is a little under OMR 26 million,
and in present value terms the benefit of MIS losses reductions in 2015 is around OMR 72 million, using @
discount rate of 6% (OMR 687 million if assessed against 2004 losses of 24.6%). These figures take no account
of investment savings in generation and network infrastructure, which would significantly increase the value
of losses reduction benefits.




Lal¥

e = ANNUAL REPORT 2015

System Peak Demands: MIS and Dhofar Power System in 2014 and 2015
Figure 12 presents monthly MIS peak demands in 2014 and 2015.
Figure 12: Main Interconnected System Peak Demand - 2014 & 2015

ESSd Temp oC at times of 2015 Peak MW
—#—2015 Peak MW
—ar—2014 Peak MW

% Temp oC at
2015 Peak: 5712 2014 Peak MW 2015 Peak MW | " tm;es :fmzv%ﬁ
MW (June) ea
Jan 2,338 2,682 15% 24
Feb 2,290 3,022 32% 31
2014 Peak: Mar 2,744 3,707 35% 30
5,269 MW (June)
Apr 4,191 4,722 13% 37
May 5,079 5,534 9% 44
Jun 5,269 5,618 7% 40
Jul 4,980 5,744 15% 46
440C 460C
. 370C 370C 360C 360C Aug 4,871 5,448 12% 37
saoc 0¢ 300C 290C 360c Sep 4,835 5,603 16% 36
Oct 4,101 4,681 14% 36
Nov 3,357 3,879 16% 29
Dec 2,602 2,946 13% 26
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
Max MW 5,269 5,744 9%
Source: OETC
Figure 13 presents Dhofar Power System monthly peak demands in 2014 and 2015.
Figure 13: Dhofar Power System Peak Demand - 2014 & 2015
== Temp oC at times of 2015 Peak MW
—4—2015 Peak MW 2014 2015 % ti‘:::;z;)goa]t-s
#2014 Peak MW 2015 Peak: Peak MW Peak MW change Peak MW
495MW (June)
Jan 268 300 12% 24
Feb 283 313 11% 25
Mar 357 397 11% 22
2014 Peak: o
439MW (May) Apr 406 443 9% 28
May 434 495  14% 30
Jun 439 493 12% 31
300C 310C
280C 270C 280C 270C 280C 270C Jul 394 440 12% 28

240C 25°C ) ¢ Aug 395 427 8% 27
Sep 403 449 11% 28
Oct 396 449 13% 27
Nov 380 420  10% 28
Dec 329 361 10% 27

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Max MW 439 495 13%

Source: OETC
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Electricity Demand Forecasts

In accordance with Condition 5 of the Power and Water Procurement licence, the PWP publishes an annual
statement presenting a 7-year outlook for electricity and desalinated water demand, and the capacities
required to meet forecast demand, for the MIS and Dhofar Power System. The electricity demand forecasts
in each 7-year statement are official forecasts to which electricity sector planning is referenced. The most
recent 7-year statement (Issue 10, for the period 2016 to 2022) is available for review and download from the
PWP’s website (www.omanpwp.com). The main highlights of the electricity demand forecasts are as follows:

MIS: in the expected case, MIS peak demand is projected to grow at 8% per year to reach
9.529 MW in 2022 which is lower than the previous forecast. The "low case” projects 6%
annual growth, resulting in peak demand of 8,266 MW in 2022, the “high case” projects
10% annual growth and peak demand at 11,036 MW in 2022, about 1,500 MW higher than
the central case.

In terms of energy, the expected, low and high case forecasts for 2022 are 50 TWh, 42 TWh
and 60 TWh respectively; and

Dhofar System: in the expected case peak demand is expected to grow at 9% per year, reaching 884

MW in 2022. The "low case” projects 6% annual growth, reaching 758 MW by 2022. The

“high case” allows for more rapid industrialization, and has peak demand increasing at

12% per year to reach 1,089 MW in 2022.

lIn terms of energy, the expected, low and high case forecasts for 2022 are 5.5 TWh, 4.4

TWh and 7.1 TWh respectively.

Please refer to Issue 10 of the PWP 7-year statement for further details of the electricity demand forecasts and
how PWP plans to ensure sufficient contfracted capacity will be available to meet forecasted demand for
electricity and water.

Approved Projects and Capital Expenditure: 2015

Licensed system operators (OETC, MEDC, Majan, Mazoon, RAEC and DPC) approved 520 projects in 2015,
with a total value of OMR 335.9 million. Table 1 presents details of the approved projects by Licensee, region
and value.

Table 1: Project Approvals by Licensees in 2015

Company
Region OETC* Muscat Majan Mazoon RAEC DPC Totals % Total
Al Dahirah RO 24,494,343 10,698,530 35,192,873 10.5%
Al Shargiya RO 8,715,000 4,410,312 7,997,166 21,122,478 6.3%
Al Wusta RO 1,768,096 1,768,096 0.5%
Dakhiliya RO 58,892,266 5,772,697 107,786 64,772,749 19.3%
Dhofar RO 31,143,067 3,835,309 21,208,994 56,187,370 16.7%
Musandam RO 4,586,619 4,586,619 1.4%
Muscat RO 39,051,333 24,762,202 779,764 64,593,298 19.2%
North Batinah RO 15,488,962 21,695,632 535,216 37,719,810 11.2%
South Batinah RO 34,694,304 6,524,107 41,218,411 12.3%
Al Buraimi RO 5,380,773 5,380,773 1.6%
Other** RO 2,747,238 622,507 3,369,744 1.0%
Total Value 212,479,274 24,762,202 40,522,172 17,242,333 19,697,246 21,208,994 335,912,221
% of Total 63.3% 7.4% 12.1% 5.1% 5.9% 6.3%
Number of Projects 18 24 190 19 39 230 520

Source: Company returns

* Projects are categorised under the region where the project commence

** Other: includes material costs and any other costs that are general to the whole region, not specific to one region
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OETC accounts for 63.3% of approved projects by value, which reflects the significant investment made
to connect and transport electricity from production facilities. Majan accounts for 12.1% of projects value,
MEDC 7.4%, DPC 6.3%, RAEC 5.9% and Mazoon 5.1%.

In terms of regional investment, Dakhiliya region accounts for 19.3% (OMR 6é4.7 million) of approved projects
and Muscat 19.2% (OMR 64.5 million) due to significant network investments by OETC, MEDC and Mazoon in

these regions.

Allregions benefited from EWS investment in 2015 in line with the government’s policy commitment to provide
electricity and water services throughout the Sultanate.

EWS Employment & Omanisation: 2014 and 2015

The Authority undertakes an annual survey of electricity and water sector employment and Omanisation.
The survey provides information on Direct and Indirect (contractor) employment by entity, by grade, by
regulated activity, by region, and by nationality (Omani nationals and expatriates).

Table 2 summarises the results of the 2015 survey.

Table 2: Total EWS Employment by Type, Nationality and Function: 2014 & 2015

2014 2015
Type Function Omani Expatriate Total Omani Expatriate Total
Direct Admin & Supervisory 882 80 962 998 76 1,074
Managerial 196 56 252 220 60 280
Operations 217 39 256 264 38 302
Technical 1,097 104 1,201 969 94 1,063
Others 142 12 154 154 15 169
Direct Total 2,534 291 2,825 2,605 283 2,888
Contractor Admin & Supervisory 215 197 412 248 162 410
Managerial 129 111 240 89 89 178
Operations 505 706 1,211 732 462 1,194
Technical 457 1,425 1,882 593 1,294 1,887
Others 1,468 1,109 2,577 1,303 888 2,191
Contractor Total 2,774 3,548 6,322 2,965 2,895 5,860
Total Employment 5,308 3,839 9,147 5,570 3,178 8,748
% Change from 2014 4.9% -17.2% -4.4%

Source: Authority 2015 employment survey

2015 Direct employment was 2.2% higher than in 2014. Indirect employment in 2015 (5,860) was 7.3% lower
than the previous year and reflects the reduction of 653 Expatriate contractors.

Since 2005, total (Direct and Indirect) employment has increased by 82% from 4,796 to 8,748 in 2015. Direct
employment accounts for 46% of this increase, with Omani nationals accounting for 90% of the increase in

Direct employment.

Figure 14 presents the 2015 Omanisation rates for Direct and Indirect employment.
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Figure 14: EWS Employment & Omanisation: 2015

Omani Expatriate Total
Direct Employees 2,605 283 2,888 90%
Indirect Employees 2,965 2,895 5,860 51%
Total Employees 5,570 3,178 8,748 64%
B Omani H Expatriate Totals

Direct Employees 2,888

Indirect Employees 5,860

8,748

Total Employee

64%
Source: Authority 2015 employment survey

Omani nationals accounted for 90% of Direct employment in 2015 and for 51% of Indirect employment,
confributing to a sector Omanisation rate of 64%. The Authority’s annual employment survey highlights

changes in the underlying composition of electricity and water sector employment; these are shown in figure
15.

Figure 15: Employment & Omanisation by Activity: 2015

Change in Total Employment by Activity: 2014 to 2015 2015 Omanisation By Activity
Production (Gen/Desal) i 84 _ 65%
PWP SAOC 1 ﬁ 84%
Transmission & Dispatch E 33 _ 81%

65%

Distribution & Supply ﬁ

Dhofar Power Company E -131

47%

RAEC SAOC bl 62 53%

Total Ews [

|

64%

The increase in 2015 EWS employment shown in Figure 15 reflects the continuing employment needs of a sector
that is working hard to keep pace with strong electricity demand growth. Licensees have a responsibility to
ensure that the new recruits have the fraining and guidance needed to increase their productivity and
thereby help moderate future increases in electricity sector costs.
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Electricity & Water Sector Issues in 2015
Fatal Accidents

Regrettably, the electricity sector again witnessed a number of fatal accidents in 2015. The high number
of deaths remains a concern for the Authority, both for people working in the electricity sector and those
who come into contact with utility assets. The Authority is continuing its efforts to increase awareness of
the importance of health and safety to both licensees and contractors in order to minimise the number
of accidents that occur, and to reduce the seriousness of any accident that does occur. The Authority
conducted a number of formal Health and Safety Audits of Licensees and confinues to conduct spot audits.
It has to be noted that the records below represent only the accidents that were reported to the Authority.
Specifically, accidents of electrocution to the general public are brought to the knowledge of the Authority
by the ROP or the Public Prosecution Office.

Table 3: Summary of Fatal Incident Investigations by the Authority - 2015

Date Location Licensee Incident

Lineman suffered burns from arc-flash. Succumbed to

9 March 2015 Al Kamil Mazoon ST . -
injuries in hospital on 1 April.

24 March 2015 Musandam RAEC Lineman fell from tower under construction

16 June 2015 Musanah Mazoon Farmworker electrocuted (customer wiring)

21 June 2015 Tadhoo, Dhofar RAEC Two operations contractors killed in a vehicle accident

26 August 2015 Heel Mazoon Lineman sustained fatal injuries whilst seeking shelter
from a sudden storm

14 November 2015 Bahla Mazoon Child electrocuted in a farm (customer wiring)

Professional Development of Authority Staff
The Authority is committed to the professional development of Omani staff. In 2015:

(i) Eng. Hilal Al Ghaithi completed a MSc course in Renewable Energy and Power Systems Management
at the City University in London passing with Disfinction;

(ii) Bushra Al Maskari completed a MSc of Public Policy Programme at the Blavatnik School of Government
at the University of Oxford passing with Merit; and

(iii) Nahrain Al Kharousi successfully completed the Global Remuneration Professional Certification
programme (GRP)

Customer Awareness Programmes

The Authority continued the delivery of successful meetings designed to raise customers’ and stakeholders’
awareness of what they have a right to expect from licensed suppliers.

A total of 10 meetings were held during 2015, with a focus on bilateral meetings with smaller community
based organisations that tend to have a lower level of awareness. These meetings generated lively debate
and provided the Authority with strong insights info the views and experiences of customers, as well as
ensuring that stakeholders better understand the role of the local distribution and supply licensees and their
meter reading, billing and collection contractors (OIFC and ONEC). In addition to awareness raising seminars
and events, the Authority continued its efforts to produce customer friendly printed materials that explain
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customers’ rights and responsibilities. During 2015 the Authority published a “Guide to Determinations” as the
third in our series of customer guides entitled *How can we help you;"” It describes the legal determinations of
customer disputes made by the Authority since its establishment in 2005.

Cyber Security Regulation

In February 2015 the Authority consulted with all licensees on the introduction of Cyber Security Standards.
Followingreceipt offeedback, the Authority proposed a modificationto Licencesto enable the implementation
of these new Standards by introducing a new license condition related to Cyber Security. The modification
came into effect on 1 January 2016.

Customer Related KPIs

The Authority concluded during 2015 that although good progress was being made, especially in relation to
the fimescale during which complaints are processed, more needed to be done to ensure that the reporting
process is sufficiently robust, especially in relation to reported meter reading performance, the application of
the Late Payment Code of Practice and the speed at which new customers are connected to the network.
Care also needed to be taken to improve the quality as well as the speed of complaint handling performance
and actions have been agreed with Distribution and Supply Licensees to that effect.

As a result of that assessment, the Authority invited consultants to indicate their interest in conducting, in
2016, a more detailed review of licensees’ customer services performance and of their information and
performance reporting processes, taking info account the Authority’s initial assessment. The results will be
shared with Distribution and Supply Licensees and Action Plans developed to enhance compliance with the
regulatory framework and the quality of performance reporting data.

Joining ERRA

In April 2015 the Authority was invited to join the Energy Regulators Regional Association (ERRA). The ERRA
offers the Authority the opportunity to interact with other energy regulators, exchange experience and
views, make use of energy related information and data and benefit from specialised training courses on
regulations. The Authority officially joined the ERRA in June 2015

Health and Safety Audit of MEDC and RAEC, plus follow-up of audits of other licensees

In 2015 the Authority conducted Health and Safety audits of RAEC and MEDC that sought to review both
the progress that had been made since similar audits in 2009 and to confirm compliance with the health
and safety requirements of their licence. Whilst the recent audits were able to demonstrate that significant
improvements had been made by both licensees, including strong commitment from the board and
executive management, the audits identified some worrying failures that resulted in routine contravention of
the company safety rules and non-compliance with Omani Occupational Health and Safety requirement.
The Authority is following the progress made by each company in implementing the audit recommendations
on monthly basis.

Furthermore, the Authority followed the implementation of 2014 audit recommendations for Dhofar Power
Company, Oman Electricity Transmission Company, and Oman Power and Water Procurement Company.
This process is continuing in 2016.

During 2015, the continued efforts were extended with the remaining licensed production facilities who had

not completed all corrective actions from the 2012/13 audits, and during the year the Authority was pleased
to note that all actions had been completed and that there had been a substantive improvement in safety

and safety management.
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The development of the Licensing framework for Desalination Facilities of Special Nature

Following the modification of the Sector Law by Royal Decree 47/2013, the Authority became responsible for
the regulation of Desalination Facilities of Special Nature (Independent Water Project procured by PWP based
on request from PAEW pursuant to the provisions of the Sector Law). The Authority prepared the regulatory
framework for the regulated activity of Water Desalination from a Desalination Facility of a Special Nature.
The Desalination Licence of Special Nature was finalised and two Licences are expected to be granted in
2016.

The grant of the first Licence for Electricity Generation from renewable energy

In order to facilitate and promote the use of renewable energy, the Authority undertook a number of
initiatives to ensure the current regulatory framework enables the deployment of renewable energy projects.
To this effect, the Authority developed a Generation Licence for electricity Generation from renewable
energy resources. The Licence was structured considering the technical characteristics of renewable energy
resources and contfains similar conditions and requirements when compared to the standard generation
Licences while placing lower regulatory (and financial) burden on such licensees due to the relative size of
the current project. The Authority continues to work towards facilitating the utilisation of renewable energy
resources in Oman.

Safety of Electrical Wiring in Homes and in Public Areas

The Authority confinued its effort to ensure compliance with the Oman Regulations for Electrical Installations
(OES4) which sefs the basic requirements for safe electrical wiring. Sadly, in 2015 there were deaths due to
unsafe electrical wiring, deaths that would have been prevented had the installations complied with OES4.
The Authority has increased its efforts to make the public aware of the importance of ensuring that the
electrical wiring within their properties are safe, that protective devices like ELCBs/RCBs work correctly, and
to forbid any illegal electrical connections to other properties. Similar efforts are also being taken with the
owners of electrical installations in public places, such as street lights, shopping malls etc.

Rusail investigation

On 7 May 2015, a flashover on a 33kV circuit breaker at Rusail Grid led to a significant blackout that affected
over 800 customers, including Sultan Qaboos University campus, a hospital, Knowledge Oasis Muscat,
industrial and residential customers, with a loss of 73MW for around 13 hours. The Authority commissioned
an independent investigation of both the root causes of the blackout and the manner in which supplies
were restored. The restoration was delayed by problems of the concerned licensee's making and by a
second flashover at Rusail. This incident highlighted some serious technical and customer service failings in
the concerned licensees that need to be addressed as a matter of urgency by the business. The Authority's
final report was published in June 2015, and the concerned licensee has been required to report on progress
made in implementing the recommendations on a monthly basis.
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Regulatory Focus #1 Economic Costs of Supply

The electricity sector in the Sultanate contfinues to experience considerable growth in demand on an annual
basis. Higher demand has increased the amount of investments and quantities of fuel needed to ensure future
demand for electricity can be supplied in a secure and reliable manner. As the electricity sector absorbs
more financial and natural resources the Authority works to ensure electricity is produced, tfransmitted and
distributed efficiently.

Figure 16 shows the movement in cost per kWh supplied in the Main Interconnected System from 2005 to 2015
(in both nominal and real terms):

Figure 16: Economic Cost of Electricity Supply

=== Real Cost (Bz/kWh) ====Nominal Cost (Bz/kWh)
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Figure 16 shows that the cost per unit supplied, when accounting for inflation, reduced by 28% from 2006 to
2014.

Impact of 2015 Gas Price Increase

In January 2015 the price of gas sold to electricity generation plants increased from $1.5/mmbtu to $3/mmbtu.
The increase in the price of gas doubled the fuel cost for power generation in the MIS, which had a significant
impact on the 2015 cost of supply, as shown in Figure 17. The following figure presents a breakdown of overall
costs (in real ferms), and shows that in 2015 the largest increase was in generation costs:
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Figure 17: Breakdown of Economic Costs
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Generation costs are an outcome of a competitive process for procuring [(W)PP capacities from private
developers. The competition has enabled the adoption of more efficient technologies, particularly in the use
of gas, that has contributed to the reduction in generation costs per unit. Electricity generated in 2015 only
required 256 Sm3 to generate every MWh as opposed to 412 Sm3/MWh in 2006. Please see Figure 18.

Figure 18: Improvements in Gas Efficiency

____________________________________________________________________________________________
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Transmission, distribution and supply costs were impacted by several government policies over the years that
directly applied an upword pressure on costs. In 2009 the government issued an undergrounding policy for
electric cables in several regions around the Sultanate. Employment policies include Omanisation, Omani
content, a mandatory employment of 500 Omanis in 2011, and a rise in minimum wages in 2012. The sector
managed to comply with these policies while reducing the unit costs by over 20% in the past decade:
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Figure 19: Government Policies’ impacts on electricity costs
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The reduction in costs is a reflection of the strong regulatory regime adopted by the Authority which ensures
the implementation of effective price controls with important efficiency targets. The Authority applies rigorous
price controls that ensure statutory monopolies only recover the efficient costs of conducting their regulatory
activities. The Authority also sets an annual losses target and is pleased to report that sustained efforts by
licensees have led fo a significant reduction in technical and non-technical losses.

Figure 20: Impact of Economic Regulation
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To conclude, the sector was able to consistently reduce unit costs of supply. New, more efficient generation
technologies coupled with price control mechanisms infroduced by the Authority following sectorrestructuring
in 2005 have provided electricity sector companies with strong incentives to produce, transmit and distribute
electricity efficiently, whilst meeting the significant growth in electricity demand over the same period.
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Regulatory Focus # 2 OETC Spinning Reserve Performance Improvement
Incentive Mechanism

In 2013 the Authority reviewed OETC’s scheduling and dispatch processes, which identified a tendency for
OETC to over-provide spinning reserve generation on the system. This increased the amount of generation
capacity connected to the system (with possible cost and gas consumption implications) with little if any
material counterbalancing benefits in terms of security of supply.

Rules for establishing and reporting OETC’s Operating Margin Policy are set out in OC3 of the Grid Code.
OETC was not compliant with aspects of OC3. The Authority was concerned that practices that OETC had
adopted may have been detrimental to efficient scheduling and dispatch. The Authority infroduced a
performance improvement incentive mechanism in OETC's price confrol period 3 to reduce the spinning
reserve generation to acceptable levels.

Description of the Incentive Mechanism

OETC were provided an incentive to control the spinning reserve within a reasonable band of the target level.
When spinning reserve was either excessively high or excessively low a penalty was applied, whereas when
the spinning reserve was within the target band OETC were rewarded. The Authority set an overall cap on
penalties or rewards at a value equivalent to 2% of OETC's annual Maximum Allowed Revenue.

Response to the Incentive Mechanism

The incentive mechanism was formulated based on the information obtained from the OETC dispatch
performance in 2011 and formally infroduced in the OETC price control period 3 from 2013-2015. The incentive
mechanism started in a shadow mode in 2013 and became effective starting 2014. The introduction of this
mechanism resulted in improving the performance by the OETC dispatchers and helped significantly reduce
the unnecessarily high levels of spinning reserve that were being carried by the system resulting in monotary
savings and improving the efficiency of Gas consumption. Figure 21, shows the full year duration curve of
spinning reserve levels for the years 2011 and 2015.

Figure 21: 2011 vs 2015 Spinning Reserve Duration Curve
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The green area shows the acceptable spinning reserve levels where OETC would be eligible to a reward, and
the red area shows the excessive very high or very low level of spinning reserve which would be subject to
penalty in the incentive mechanism. The curves show the improved performance between the years 2011,
which was the base case used fo infroduce the incentive mechanism, and the 2015 performance. In 2011
OETC maintained excessive higher levels of spinning reserves for around 7500 hours (around 86 % of the time).
By 2015 the number of hours of acceptable spinning reserve levels increased by around 6 times to reach
more than 6100 hours (more than 70% of the time). Figure 22 & 23 show this change.

Figure 22 & 23: Number of hours in each range 2011 & 2015

Number of hours in each range 2011 Number of hours in each range 2015

Acceptable
Low SR, 1098

SR, 141

Low SR, 527

The impact of this improvement is noticeable on the level of energy that was being carried for the security of
the system which was above the requirement. In 2011 the level of spinning reserve energy in actual TWh was
137% above the maximum acceptable spinning reserve higher limit as set out in the incentive mechanism
(125% of the target level). This was going in an upward trend and reached more than 162% in 2012. The
mechanism started in a shadow mode in 2013 and became fully effective in 2014 and 2015 resulting in a
dramatic decrease in the level of spinning reserve energy. OETC dispatchers maintained the yearly spinning
reserve energy below the maximum limit of the acceptable spinning reserve margin. The total energy of the
spinning reserve carried in the system was around 90% and 93% of the maximum acceptable limitin 2014 and
2015 respectively. This is shown in Figure 24.

Figure 24: Actual Spinning Reserve as a % of the max acceptable higher limit
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To quantify this improvement in performance Figure 25 shows that if the level of inefficient dispatch of spinning
reserve that wasrecorded in 2012 had continued at the same level up to 2015, it would have led to a dispatch
of more than 6.68 TWh of energy in 2015 compared to the achieved 3.8 TWh. This franslated in efficiency gains
or saving of approximately 3.0 TWh in 2014 and around 2.9 TWh of electrical energy in 2015. The associated
efficiency gains are approximated around OMR 5.3 and 5 million respectively at a spinning reserve valued at
1.8 Rials/MWh'.

Figure 25: Actual spinning reserve energy in TWh (normalized to a target of 375 MW in each hour)
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* Up to 2013 the level of target spinning reserve required by the system at each hour was 220 MW. Due to the
changes infroduced by the Sur power station and the growth of the fransmission system, the target spinning
reserve was increased to 375 MW starting 2014.

! There is no quantified cost for spinning reserve in Oman. This value is based on an assumed cost of 20% of the average variable
MWh costin 2015.
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ARTICLE (29) REPORTING
Further Market Liberalisation

Table 4 presents the Authority’s assessment of the possible implementation of the four Liberalisation measures
identified in the Sector Law.

Table 4: Further Market Liberalisation

Liberalisation measure Authority’s assessment of market readiness:
1.Disposal of the Government's inferest in The Authority does not consider the market ready for this
the Electricity Holding Company SAOC or | liberdlisation measure.
the Oman Power and Water Procurement The Authority d t bel ; ) ; "
Company SOAC e Authority does not believe customers, investors or the

government would benefit from the implementation of this
measure at the present time. The Authority does not propose to
take steps to prepare the market for the implementation of this
measure.

2. Permitting licensed Production Facilities to The Authority does not consider the market ready for this
sell fo persons other than Oman Power and liberalisation measure. However, work is underway to develop a
Water Procurement Company SAOC spot market for electricity frade that would provide an alternative

way for licensed Production Facilities to sell power to the PWP. The

spot market would operate alongside and in conjunction with the
existing system of long-term PPAs and PWPAs.

The spot market is expected to increase the potential for
competition in Oman’s power generation market, and to provide
a mechanism to make available additional capacity that might
otherwise not be readily accessible.

The electricity spot market is expected to be functional by 2018.

3. Permitting persons other than Oman Power The Authority does not consider the market ready for this
and Water Procurement Company SAQC | liberalisation measure.
and the Rural Areas Electricity Company
SOAC to Import or Export electricity from or to
another country

Oman became a formal signatory to the GCCIA in 2014 and the
Authority ensured the proposals are consistent with the regulatory
regime in Oman and provide safeguards to protect the interests of
customers, and other stakeholders, The GCCIA opted not fo own
any assets in Oman and therefore will not be licensed to import
or export electricity. While no further action is contemplated
to promote this liberalisation measure in the medium term as
previously stated by the Authority, discussions continue with the
GCCIA on facilitating trade across the GCCIA interconnector.

PWP currently exchanges power with the UAE through the Bilateral
Interconnection. The Authority expects the Access Conditions to
the GCC Interconnection to be finalised in 2016 which will allow for
power exchanges through the GCC Interconnection..

4. Creation of competition amongst Licensed The Authority believes the market is ready for Supply

Suppliers Competition and will initiate the Consultation and preparatory
work required by the Sector Law prior to submitting proposals
to the government.

Having progressed the small scale implementation of AMR for the
largest 8,000-10,000 customers, the Authority intends to undertake
preparatory work during 2017 to facilitate the introduction of
competition amongst Licensed Suppliers. The Authority remains
confident that the infroduction of competition will elevate the
level of service provided by Licensed Suppliers to their customers.
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Electricity Subsidy

Article (18) of the Sector Law implements a mechanism through which the Ministry of Finance provides
electricity Subsidy calculated by the Authority to licensed suppliers on an annual basis. The Authority
undertakes three separate Subsidy calculations: the first calculates MIS Subsidy required by MEDC, Majan
and Mazoon, the second calculates RAEC Subsidy, while the third calculates the Subsidy requirement of
Dhofar Power Company.

Subsidy is defined as the difference between the economic cost of Supply (including financing costs) and
Permitted Tariff (and other) revenue.

MIS Subsidy in 2015

Outturn MIS Subsidy in 2015 was OMR 344.2 million. This reflects total economic costs of OMR 743.2 million and
customer revenues of OMR 399.0 million. Figure 26 presents outturn MIS Subsidy in 2015 by company.

Figure 26: 2015 MIS Outturn Subsidy by Company

G Subsidy

@ Customer Revenue

743.2
33.4
27.6 27.0
278.7 2522 24
212.3 : |
Muscat Majan Mazoon Muscat Majan Mazoon
M MIS
million OMR Baiza/kWh
Item MEDC Majan Mazoon MIS MEDC Majan  Mazoon MIS
Customer Revenue 170.6 117.0 111.4 399.0 16.9 14.9 14.8 15.6
Subsidy 108.1 95.3 140.8 344.2 10.7 121 18.6 13.5
Economic Cost 278.7 212.3 252.2 743.2 27.6 27.0 334 29.1
Subsidy % Economic Cost 39% 45% 56% 46% 39% 45% 56% 46%
Company share of Subsidy 31% 28% 41% 100%

Source: 2015 audited SCRC Statements & Authority calculations

2015 MIS Subsidy accounted for 46% of the total economic cost of supply (OMR 743.2 million), the remaining
54% of costs was recovered through customer revenue.

MEDC, Majan and Mazoon accounted for 31%, 28% and 41%, respectively, of total 2015 MIS Subsidy. MEDC's
2015 Subsidy of OMR 108.1 million accounted for 39% of its total economic cost requirements, while Subsidy
to Majan and Mazoon (OMR 95.3 million and OMR 140.8 million respectively) constituted 45% and 56% of their
respective 2015 economic costs. The Subsidy requirement of each company reflects differences in customer
mix and the characteristics of their respective distribution systems.

Please refer to Annex D for further details of the 2015 MIS outturn Subsidy.
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2016 MIS Subsidy Forecast

The Authority’s estimate of 2016 MIS Subsidy is OMR 384.8 million. This reflects total estimated economic costs
of OMR 822.6 million of which 53% (or OMR 437.8 million) is expected to be recovered through customer
revenues.

Figure 27 presents the Authority estimates of 2016 MIS Subsidy by company.

Figure 27: Subsidy Forecast - Main Interconnected System 2014

H Subsidy

# Customer Revenue

822.6 33.1

MEDC Majan  Mazoon MIS MEDC  Majan Mazoon  MIS
Item MEDC Majan Mazoon MIS MEDC Majan Mazoon MIS
Customer Revenue 186.4 131.0 120.4 437.8 171 14.9 14.8 15.7
Subsidy 1231 112.1 149.5 384.8 11.3 12.7 18.3 13.8
Economic Cost 309.5 2431 269.9 822.6 28.4 27.6 33.1 29.5
Subsidy % Economic Cost 40% 46% 55% 47% 40% 46% 55% 47%
Company share of Subsidy 32% 29% 39% 100%

Source: Authority calculations
Please refer to Annex D for further details of the 2016 MIS Subsidy estimate.
Underlying Movement in MIS Subsidy: 2006 to 2015, and 2016 estimate
Figure 28 presents the Authority’s underlying measure of MIS Subsidy between 2006 and 2015 and expected
MIS Subsidy in 2016. The underlying measure assumes revenue, costs and efficiencies were correctly forecast

between 2006 and 2015 so as to return zero correction factors. The 2016 estimate of MIS Subsidy reflects the
2016 MAR of PWP, OETC, MEDC, Majan and Mazoon and assumed growth in Supply of 9.1%.
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Figure 28: Underlying Movement in MIS Subsidy: 2006 to 2015 & 2016 Forecast

Economic Cost (OMR m) 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 e
PWP (MAR excluding Kt) 140.5 144.5 161.2 177.6 198.3 222.5 249.6 295.4 312.0 498.5 520.6
OETC (MAR excluding Kt) 26.5 27.9 31.5 385 41.4 44.0 46.9 65.2 68.6 73.9 75.1
MEDC (MAR excluding Kt) 22.8 23.8 23.9 323 349 38.8 55.8 59.2 62.6 64.7 67.3
Majan (MAR excluding Kt) 16.6 17.8 19.6 26.0 28.0 30.8 40.8 42.1 44.4 53.1 51.0
Mazoon (MAR excluding Kt) 23.0 24.2 27.6 375 41.2 45.2 63.3 65.8 68.5 82.8 84.1
Underlying Economic Cost 229.6 238.2 263.8 311.9 343.8 381.3 456.4 527.7 556.2 773.0 798.2
Permitted Tariff (& other) Revenue 143.1 153.9 179.8 201.5 227.1 259.9 286.4 311.2 345.9 399.0 437.8
Underlying Economic Subsidy Requirement 86.5 84.3 84.0 110.4 116.7 121.5 170.0 216.5 210.3 374.0 360.4
Total Units Supplied (GWh) 9,194 9,778 11,317 12,714 14,122 16,374 18,502 20,021 22,098 25,513 27,844
Nominal
Underlying Economic Cost per kWh Supplied 25.0 24.4 23.3 24.5 24.3 23.3 24.7 26.4 25.2 30.3 28.7
Customer Revenue per kWh Supplied (bz/kWh) 15.6 15.7 15.9 15.9 16.1 15.9 15.5 15.5 15.7 15.6 15.7
Underlying Subsidy per kWh Supplied (bz/kWh) 9.4 8.6 7.4 8.7 8.3 7.4 9.2 10.8 9.5 14.7 129
Real (2016 prices)
Underlying Economic Cost per kWh Supplied 35.6 33.8 30.6 28.3 27.7 25.6 26.0 27.0 25.6 30.4 28.7
Underlying Subsidy per kWh Supplied (bz/kWh) 13.4 12.0 9.7 10.0 9.4 8.2 9.7 11.1 9.6 14.7 12.9

3?4.0 360.4 147 129

1700 2165 2103 ‘ J
865 843 840 1104 1167 1215 "
|
| === § =} ‘ . | | a L ] ! .
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016e 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016e
MIS Underlying Subsidy million OMR MIS Underlying Subsidy Bz/KWh

Source: Authority calculations

Between 2006 and 2014 the underlying economic cost of MIS supply increased by 142.3% and output (in
the form of MWh supplied) by 140.4%. Subsidy per kWh increased by 0.1% baiza/kWh (or 1%) over the same
period.

A doublingin the price of gas sold to electricity generation plants resulted in a significant increase in underlying
Subsidy per kWh in 2015 (14.7 baiza/kWh) which is 54% higher than 2014 (9.5 baiza/kWh), reflecting a 39%
increase in economic cost per kWh and no change in Permitted Tariffs. The Authority estimates that the
underlying Subsidy per kWh will decrease by 12.2% from 14.7 baiza/kWh in 2015 to 12.9 baiza/kWh in 2016.
Rural Systems

Outturn RAEC Subsidy in 2015 was OMR 67.4 million or 82.6 baiza/kWh. This reflects total economic cost of
OMR 81.1 million (99.3 baiza/kWh) and OMR 13.7 million (16.8 baiza/kWh) in customer revenue.

Figure 29 compares outturn 2015 Subsidy and our 2016 estimate of RAEC Subsidy.

Figure 29: RAEC 2015 Outturn & 2016 Subsidy Estimate

i Customer Revenue  LiSubsidy 81,1 _88-3 99.3 94.1

2015 2016 2015 2016
million OMR Baiza/kWh

Item 2015 2016 2015 2016

Customer Revenue 13.7 15.7 16.8 16.7

Subsidy 67.4 72.6 82.6 77.4

Economic Cost 81.1 88.3 99.3 94.1

Subsidy % Economic Cost 83% 82% 83% 82%

Source: 2015 audited SCRC Statements & Authority calculations
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RAEC Subsidy will increase in 2016 to OMR 72.6 million (77.4 baiza/kWh); this is approximately 8% higher than
outturn Subsidy in 2015; however in baiza/kWh it is expected to decrease by 6%. The increase in 2016 RAEC
Subsidy is mainly driven by the increase in output.

Figure 30 presents underlying RAEC Subsidy between 2006 and 2015 and expected underlying RAEC Subsidy
in 2016.

Figure 30: RAEC Underlying Movement in Subsidy: 2006 to 2015 & 2016 Forecast

680 691 762 749 710 g5 811 700 g5, 828
i |

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 | 2016 e

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 e

‘ Actual ‘ Actual ‘ Actual ‘ Actual ‘ Actual ‘ Actual ‘ Actual ‘ Actual ‘ Actual ‘ Actual ‘Estimate‘ ‘ Actual ‘ Actual ‘ Actual ‘ Actual ‘ Actual ‘ Actual ‘ Actual ‘ Actual ‘ Actual ‘ Actual ‘Esl‘male‘
Nominal 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016e 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016e
Customer Revenue 35 3.8 54 6.5 7.3 8.7 106 125 124 13.7 15.7 14.3 14.5 17.3 17.7 17.6 18.9 19.6 19.5 17.6 16.8 16.7
Subsidy 16.6 18.3 23.7 27.6 29.7 305 438 449 485 67.6 71.7 68.0 69.1 76.2 749 710 66.0 811 70.0 632 828 763
Economic Cost 20.1 222 291 34.1 37.0 39.2° | 544 57.4 609 813 874 823 836 935 926 886 849 1007 895 86.6 995 93.1

Total Units Supplied (GWh) 246 273 312 368 420 462 540 641 703 816 939

Real (2016 prices)
Subsidy 23.7 254 312 317 338 336 461 460 49.2 678 717 969 959 100.0 86.2 808 726 854 718 642 830 763
Economic Cost 28.7 30.7 | 382 | 39.2 | 421 | 432 | 573 | 589 | 61.8 | 81.5 | 874 1173 1161 1227 106.6 100.8 934 106.1 918 878 99.8 93.1

Source: 2006 to 2015 audited SCRC Statement, Authority calculations.
Please refer to Annex D for further details of the 2015 outturn RAEC Subsidy and 2016 RAEC Subsidy estimate.
Dhofar Power System
Outturn DPC Subsidy in 2015 was OMR 42.8 million. This reflects total economics cost of OMR 83.8 million and
customer revenue of OMR 40.9 million. In 2015 DPC Subsidy accounted for 51% of the total economic cost of
supply (OMR 83.8 million), the remaining 49% of costs was recovered through customer revenue.

Figure 31 compares outturn 2015 Subsidy and our 2016 estimate of DPC Subsidy.

Figure 31: DPC 2015 Outturn & 2016 Subsidy forecast

[ Subsidy
32.4
29.7
M Customer 83.8 ~ 86.8
Revenue ’ l
2015 2016 2015 2016
million OMR Baiza/kWh
Item 2015 2016 2015 2016
Customer Revenue 40.9 48.6 15.8 16.6
Subsidy 42.8 38.2 16.6 13.1
Economic Cost 83.8 86.8 324 29.7
Subsidy % Economic Cost 51% 44% 51% 44%

Source: 2015 audited SCRC Statements & Authority calculations
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The Authority’s estimate of 2016 DPC Subsidy is OMR 38.2 million. This is 11% lower than 2015 outturn Subsidy,
and reflects a total economic cost of supply of OMR 86.8 million and customer revenue of OMR 48.6 million.
Please refer to Annex D for further details of the 2015 outturn DPC Subsidy and 2016 DPC Subsidy estimate
Comparison of 2015 Subsidy by Company

Figure 32 presents a comparison of Subsidy provided to MEDC, Majan, Mazoon, RAEC and DPC in 2015. The
left hand panel presents Subsidy (baiza) per kWh supplied, the right hand panel shows Subsidy (OMR) per
Customer Account.

Figure 32: 2015 Subsidy Comparisons by Company

82.6

2,031
10.7 121 18.6 16.6 349 481 384 462
[} a & d J i d [ g B "N - 2 [ 3
MEDC Majan Mazoon RAEC DPC MEDC Majan Mazoon RAEC DPC
2015 Subsidy Baiza/KWh Supplied 2015 Subsidy OMR per Account
MEDC Majan Mazoon RAEC DPC MEDC Majan Mazoon RAEC DPC
Subsidy per KWh/Account 10.7 12.1 18.6 82.6 16.6 349 481 384 2,031 462
Subsidy OMR m 108.1 95.3 140.8 67.4 42.8 108.1 95.3 140.8 67.4 42.8
GWh/'000 Accounts 10,104 7,858 7,550 816 2,583 310 198 367 33 93

Source: 2015 audited SCRC Statements & Licensee returns

Mazoon accounts for 31.0% of the OMR 454.4 million of Subsidy and financial support provided to the
companies in 2015, MEDC accounts for 23.8%, Majan 21.0%, RAEC 14.8%, and DPC 9.4%.

RAEC Subsidy per kWh supplied and per account is significantly higher than other companies (and excludes
RAEC electrification funding provided in accordance with Article (87) of the Sector Law), confirming the
significant Subsidy support provided to customers in rural areas.

The Subsidy requirements of all companies reflect nominal increases in economic costs (to support increasing
demand) and Permitted Tariffs that are not indexed to inflation and decline in real terms year on year.
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Electricity Tariffs
Permitted Tariffs
Electricity supplied to consumers is charged at a Permitted Tariff approved by the Council of Ministers.

Table 5 presents details of the present Permitted Tariffs for different customer categories, and Permitted Tariff
fees for the disconnection and reconnection of customer accounts.

Table 5: Permitted Tariffs

A Permitted Tariffs for Electricity Supply

Permitted Tariff Category Tariff Structure

Industrial 1 All Regions except Dhofar Dhofar Region
September to April: 12 Baiza per kWh August to March: 12 Baiza perkWh
May to August: 24 Baiza per kWh April to July: 24 Baiza per kWh
Commercial Flat rate @ 20 Baiza per KWh

Ministry of Defence and the

S Erael e Flat rate @ 20 Baiza per KWh

Residential 0-3000 kWh 3001-5000 kWh 5001-7000 kWh 7001-10000 kWh above 10000 kWh
10 Bz / kWh 15 Bz / kWh 20 Bz / kWh 25 Bz / kWh 30 Bz / kWh
Government 0-3000 kWh 3001-5000 kWh 5001-7000 kWh 7001-10000 kWh above 10000 kWh
10 Bz / kWh 15 Bz / kWh 20 Bz / kWh 25 Bz / kWh 30 Bz/kWh
Agriculture & Fisheries 0-7900 kwh 7001 kYVh & above
10 Baiza per kWh 20 Baiza per kWh
Tourism2 0-3000 kWh 3001-5000 kWh 5001-7000 kWh above 7001 kWh
10 Bz / kWh 15 Bz / kWh 20 Bz / kWh 20 Bz/ kWh

1 Customers require a MOCI letter of recommendation and must maintain a power factor of least 0.9
2 Subject to Ministry of Tourism regulations and approval

B: Permitted Tariff fees for Disconnection & Reconnection of accounts

Disconnection fee (all types of metered accounts): 7.500 Rial Omani
Reconnection fee (all types of metered accounts): 7.500 Rial Omani

No new Permitted Tariffs or tariff modifications were implemented in 2015.




Ll

e = ANNUAL REPORT 2015

Electricity and Water Bulk Supply Tariffs

Electricity Bulk Supply Tariffs (“BST”) relate to the tariff charged by PWP for the Bulk Supply of electricity to
Licensed Suppliers in the MIS (MEDC, Majan, and Mazoon) and DPS. The approved 2016 PWP electricity Bulk
Supply Tariffs are shown in Table 6.

Table 6: PWP 2016 Electricity Bulk Supply Tariffs

A PWP Electricity Bulk Supply Tariff for MIS - 2016
Weekday Day- Weekend

Baiza per kWh Off Feak gl Pl peak Day-peak
January to March 12.0 12.0 12.0 12.0
April 14.0 14.0 14.0 14.0
May to July 18.0 27.0 59.0 37.0
August to September 15.0 21.0 27.0 20.0
October 14.0 14.0 14.0 14.0
November to December 12.0 12.0 12.0 12.0
Rate Band Day(s) / Time(s)

Off Peak All days : 02:00 to 13:00 and 17:00 to 22:00

Night Peak All days : 22:00 to 02:00 (following day)

Weekday Day-peak Sunday to Thursday, 13:00 to 17:00

Weekend Day-peak Friday to Saturday, 13:00 to 17:00

Source: PWP 2016 Electricity BST Leaflet for MIS

B PWP Electricity Bulk Supply Tariff for DPS - 2016

Off-Peak

Baiza per kWh On-Peak Morning Mid-Peak Off-Peak Night
Weekday Weekend All Days Weekday Weekend All Days

January to March 12.0 12.0 12.0 12.0 12.0 12.0

April 25.0 25.0 20.0 21.0 20.0 31.0

May to June 55.0 25.0 21.0 37.0 20.0 31.0

July to August 14.0 14.0 14.0 14.0 14.0 14.0

September to October 16.0 14.0 14.0 16.0 14.0 14.0

November to December 12.0 12.0 12.0 12.0 12.0 12.0

Rate Band Day(s) / Time(s)

On-Peak Weekday Sunday to Thursday : 00:00 to 04:00 and 15:00 to 17:00

On-Peak Weekend Friday to Saturday : 00:00 to 04:00 and 15:00 to 17:00

Off-Peak Morning All days : 04:00 to 11:00

Mid-Peak Weekday Sunday to Thursday : 11:00 to 15:00

Mid-Peak Weekend Friday to Saturday : 11:00 to 15:00

Off-Peak Night All days : 17:00 to 24:00

Source: PWP 2016 Electricity BST Leaflet for DPS

The Authority also approves water Bulk Supply Tariffs charged by PWP and RAEC for the Bulk Supply of water
to Water Departments. Table 7 below shows the approved 2016 PWP and RAEC water Bulk Supply Tariffs.
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Table 7: PWP and RAEC 2016 Water Bulk Supply Tariffs

Schedule of Charges

Fixed charge for committed Water Desalination Capacity OMR O.37Z/cpj)er day per
m”/day

Variable charge for Desalinated Water OMR 0.089 per day per m*®®

PWP service charge (based on committed Water OMR 0.005 per day per

Desalination Capacity) m°/day

OMR 0.3015 to 0.9618 per

. . . 1
Variable charge for Distillate Water Supplied to MISC day per m3/day

Source: PWP 2016 Water BST Leaflet
D RAEC Water Bulk Supply Tariff - 2016

RAEC Water Bulk Supply Tariff OMR 1.340 per m?
Source: RAEC 2016 Water BST Leaflet

Transmission Use of System Charge
OETC levies a Transmission Use of System (“TUoS”) charge for the use of its Transmission Systems in the MIS
(MEDC, Majan and Mazoon) and DPS. The approved 2016 TUoS for both MIS and DPS are shown in Table 8

below.

Table 8: 2016 Transmission Use of System Charge

System
OMR/MW MIS DPS

2016 TUoS Charge 12,000 12,000
Source: OETC 2016 Statement of Transmission System Charges
The TUoS charge is applied fo Licensed Suppliers’ (MW) share of system peak demand.
Distribution Use of System Charge
Licensed Distribution companies apply a Distribution Use of System (“DUoS") charge for the use of their
respective Distribution Systems. The approved 2016 DUoS charge for each distribution company (MEDC,

Majan, Mazoon and DPC) are shown in Table 9 below.

Table 9: 2016 Distribution Use of System Charges

Company
OMR/MWh MEDC \ETEN] Mazoon DPC
2016 DUoS Charge 5.39 7.49 8.50 6.10

Source: Licensed Distribution companies’ 2016 Distribution Use of System Methodology and Charging Statement

The above charges apply in respect of each MWh supplied through the respective Distribution system.
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REGULATION
Avuthority for Electricity Regulation

The Authority was established as an administratively and financially independent entity subject to State Audit
Law by Article (19) of the Sector Law. The Authority is competent to regulate the electricity and related water
sector pursuant to Article (2) of the Sector Law. Authority Members are appointed by the Council of Ministers
for three year terms.

The present Members of the Authority are:

Dr Amer bin Saif Al Hinai - Chairman and non-executive Member (a part time appointment);

Ayisha bint Zaher Al Mawali - non-executive Member (a part time appointment);

Mohammed bin Ahmed Al Shahri - non-executive Member (a part time appointment);

Eng Saleh bin Hamood Al Rashdi- non-executive Member (a part time appointment);

Qais bin Saud Al Zakwani - Executive Director and Member (a full time appointment).

Excluding Members, the Authority has a fotal compliment of 46 Directors and staff, most of whom are Omani

national. Professional staff have qualifications relevant to their respective areas of regulation: 24 staff have
Bachelor's Degrees and 9 have Master Degrees.

Members Meetings
Members met regularly throughout 2015 on the dates shown in Table 10

Table 10: Members Meetings in 2015

Dr Amer Al Hinai Qais Al Zakwani Ayisha Al Mawali Mohammed Al Shahri Eng Saleh Al Rashdi
Chairman & Member Executive Director & Member Member Member Member
Appointed for term in: May-2014 May-2014 May-2014 May-2014 April-2015
Meeting Dates

4-February-2015 v v v v
9-March-2015 v v v v
13-April-2015 v v v v
7-May-2015 v v v v

17-June-2015 v v v v v

15-July-2015 v v v v v

7-September-2015 v v 7 7 7

19-October-2015 v v v v v

9-November-2015 v v v v v

18-November-2015 v v v v v

28-December-2015 v v v v v
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Funding & Regulatory Costs
The Authority recovers all of its costs through licence fees that apportion the Authority’s costs on the basis of
the time expected to be spent regulating each activity. Table 11 presents licence fee income by regulated

activity and the number of Licence Holders by activity, for 2008 to 2016, inclusive.

Table 11: Licence Fees 2008 to 2016

o8 ® 3 = o
= €5 | § c s E= = 2 S < _
. . i) O = = < o 6 = ) o [9) O o
Rial Omani E 50 | 890 | £ 2 G RO 0 S T2 | 0o
= = C E o 2 > <C wl [ ‘/’ = Q L
[0} (ol 58 | 235 O " o 2 [ole) = €
c c 3 Z 2 = e o a Q= o c 2 O O
(o) O O o O o g < B b 0 b OR) o 9
Q (O)a =0 Ao % o o a = o O c = £
2008 Fees 95,284 99,087 320,669 474,590 159,345 232,225 192,401 10,359 29,465 0 1,381,200
# licenses 4 3 1 3 1 1 13
2009 Fees 154,351 220,501 514,503 782,045 230,792 547,824 288,122 14,700 245,002 0 2,450,016
# licenses 4 4 1 3 1 1 14
2010 Fees 112,724 125,096 259,264 428,350 120,009 329,236 206,202 10,310 112,724 0 1,374,679
# licenses 4 4 1 3 1 1 10,310 14
2011 Fees 118,360 164,189 285,190 492,601 132,010 362,160 123,996 11,341 226,822 0 1,554,510
# licenses 4 5 1 3 1 1 15
2012 Fees 213,048 241,359 427,785 620,676 211,216 386,074 145,075 14,176 386,074 0 2,100,158
# licenses 6 5 1 3 1 1 17
2013 Fees 312,470 241,359 410,674 777,914 211,216 179,733 151,381 28,353 0 0 2,133,367
# licenses 8 5 1 4 1 1 20
2014 Fees 359,341 334,117 595,477 1,127,975 306,263 283,776 227,071 56,705 0 2,000 3,008,949
# licenses 8 5 1 4 1 1 1 21
2015 Fees 427,491 417,316 848,124 908,704 331,875 356,897 272,611 84,286 0 2,000 3,292,407
# licenses 8 5 1 4 1 1 1 21
2016 Fees 386,040 366,045 553,799 855,872 275,805 296,600 226,554 70,046 0 2,000 2,736,161
# licenses 8 5 1 4 1 1 1 21

Changes in licence fees year on year reflect the changing scope of regulatory work as the electricity and
related water sector market develops.

The cost of electricity and water sector regulation in 2015 was around OMR 3.2 per Customer account, around
one tenth of one baiza per kWh Supplied and less that 0.25% of total electricity and water sector turnover,
meftrics the Authority believes compare favourably to international benchmarks of regulatory costs.

2016 Forward Work Programme

Article (34) of the Sector Law requires the Authority to prepare a Forward Work Programme for the coming
year, and consult with Persons who may be affected by the proposed work. In December 2015 the Authority
consulted on its proposed 2016 Forward Work Programme and published the programme in accordance
with Article (34) of the Sector Law and is in the process of implementing all of its constituent tasks. The 2016
Forward Work programme is presented in Annex F of this report.
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Customer Affairs Directorate

The Customer Affairs Directorate is responsible for protecting and promoting the interests of electricity
customers. The Directorate carries out these functions by resolving complaints, monitoring and ensuring
performance of customer related licence obligations by distribution and supply licensees and enhancing
customer awareness of the legal and regulatory framework and the standard of service to which they are
entitled.

In 2015 the Directorate:

i. Infroduced a new reporting framework for licensees in relation to Key Performance Indicators
incorporated in the 2015-2017 distribution and supply price control;

i. Further progressed the plan for a small scale implementation during 2016 and 2017 of an
automated meterreading (AMR) system for around 8,000 customers who consume large amounts
of electricity;

ii. Published a customer friendly "Guide to Determinations” as the third in our series of customer
guides entitled "How can we help you;”

iv. Developed a new Customer Resource Centre to be incorporated in the Authority’s welbsite to
be launched in 2016;

V. Continued to build relations with external stakeholders, focusing on smaller scale community
groups who are less well informed about electricity customers’ rights;
Vi. Supported the Authority's review of distribution and supply licensees outage management

processes, playing a lead role in the Authority’s workshop that led to the development of short
and medium term Action Plans for each licensee; ;

vii.  Ensured that distribution and supply Licensees confinued to progress the Blueprint for customer
services enhancements under development by licensees. Supported licensees’ introduction
of a new billing system that will provide greatly enhance the ability to manage meter reading
performance and improve the accuracy of estimated bills;

vii.  Approved the revision of the Supply Terms applicable to residential customers:

iX. Received 87 new customer complaints and resolved 92 outstanding customer complaints;

X. Advised a further 159 customers on their rights and how to progress their complaint using the
approved complaint handling procedure;

Xi. Contributed to a number of public conferences and debates on customer related issues, both in
Oman and internationally

Licences, Codes, Procedures and Charters:

Inlate 2013 the Authority instructed distribution and supply licensees to review the Supply Agreement (Terms of
Supply) applicable to residential customers that had been in use since 2006, with the objective of simplifying
the document and making it easier for customers to understand.

A working group comprising of staff from each licensee and members of the Authority’s Directorate of
Customer Affairs discussed a number of alternative drafts during 2014 and 2015 and a significantly simpler
and shorter document was approved by the Authority in early 2015. Licenees published the revised versions
in April 2015.

From January 2015 distribution and supply licensees have been required to report their performance against
a number of Key Performance indicators (KPIs) in accordance with the 2015-2017 price control. Reports are
received on a quarterly basis and the Authority meets with each licensee on a regular basis in order to
monitor progress and to assess the quality of the data received. At the same fime the Authority continues to
monitor performance against obligations set out in the Complaint Handling Procedure and the Late Payment
Code of Practice
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The Authority concluded during 2015 that although good progress was being made more needed to be
done to ensure that the reporting process is sufficiently robust. During December 2015 the Authority invited
consultants to indicate their interest in conducting a review of licensees’' customer services performance and
of their information and performance reporting.

Automated Meter Reading for large customers

The Authority continued to progress the small scale implementation of automated meter reading for the
largest 8,000 - 10,000 electricity customers in co-operation with licensees, the Electricity Holding Company and
the EHC's advisors, CESI of Italy. This included further discussions on the scope of the project and preparation
of tenders for the provision of more sophisticated meters and of a meter data management system. These
are expected to be issued in early 2016.

Complaints and determinations

Itis the Authority’s policy, as set out in the approved Complaint Handling Procedure, that licensees must first be
given an opportunity to resolve customer complaints. Should they fail to resolve the matter to the satisfaction
of the customer, or within the timeframes specified in the Complaint Handling Procedure, the customer may
refer the case to the Authority. The Authority has legal powers to determine how such complaints should be
resolved.

The Authority made 69 Determinations in the period 2005 — 2012, covering all main categories of complaints.
This body of precedent was sufficient to enable the Authority’s staff to resolve a further 92 unresolved
complaints during 2015, compared with 87 complaints received during the year. However, the Authority will
continue to make further Determinations when it is necessary to set further precedent and when a Customer
does not accept the resolution of his dispute on the basis of precedent and wishes to pursue the matter in
Court.

The figure of 87 complaints received during 2015 was a very slight decrease on the 91 complaints received
during 2014. Figure 33 below presents an analysis of the issues that were the cause of those 87 complaints.

Figure 33: Categories of Customer Complaint in 2015

2015 Complaint Issues

Egsemplalnt # 2014 Y 4 2015 o Asset Relocation,

A o o jon, 18%
Billing 56 61% 45 52% 2% = = Connection, 18%
Meter Reading 0 0% 0 0%
Meter Tampering 0 0% 0 0% Landlord Tenant,
Landlord Tenant 1 1% 0 0% 0%

) Meter Tampering, Other, 7%
Asset Relocation 1" 12% 20 23% 0%
Connection 19 21% 16 18% .
Meter Reading,

Other 5 5% 6 7% 0%
Totals 92 87
Source: Authority complaints database Billing, 52%

The number of billing related complaints recorded in 2015 decreased from 56 to 45, which is 52% of the annual
total. This still reflects problems experienced by licensees and their agents with meter readings and with the
accuracy of estimated bills. These problems are continuing to be addressed with the implementation of a
new billing system. The number of complaints relating to customer connection was a little lower than in 2014

at 16 compared with 19.



A

e = ANNUAL REPORT 2015

Customer Support

In addition to formal complaints received, the Directorate also provides advice to customers who contact
the Authority before raising the matter formally with their licensed supplier or before they have received a
formal response from their supplier. The Authority advises customers of their rights and, where appropriate, of
precedent decisions taken in similar cases, as well as the procedure to be followed.

In 2015 the Directorate provided advice to 159 customers, compared with 115in 2014 and 160 in 2013. Of
those 159 cases, 102 related to billing, compared with 61 in 2014, an increase of 67%. Customer connections
represented 25 cases, compared with 13 in 2015.
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Economics & Financial Affairs

The Directorate is responsible for the economic regulation of the electricity and water sector. This includes
setting and monitoring RPI-X price controls, reviewing and approving electricity and related water Bulk Supply
Tariffs, and calculating licensed supplier's annual Subsidy requirements.

In 2015 the Directorate:

e Completed a price control review of OETC. The new Transmission and Dispatch price controls came
info effect on 1 January 2016;

e Completed a price confrol review of PWP. The new power and water procurement price controls
came into effect on 1 January 2016;

* Undertook market share and economic interest assessments for entities participating in competitions
for the lori IPP, Sohar lIl IPP, Barka Il IWP, Sohar Il IWP, Salalah Il IWP, Shargiyah IWP, Dugm IWP and Asila
& Qurayyat temporary water projects.

* Undertook analysis to confirm outturn (2014) and projected (2015 and 2016) electricity sector subsidy
requirements.

e Undertook analysis o support the issuance of draft regulations by the Public Authority for Electricity and
Water on cost-reflective tariffs;

e Reviewed the 2016 PWP and RAEC electricity and water Bulk Supply Tariff proposals submitted for
approval; and

e Reviewed the 2015-2021 PWP 7-Year Statement submitted for approval.
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Technical Directorate

The Technical Directorate is responsible for approving technical standards and for monitoring compliance
with Industry Codes, planning and operating standards, and Oman Electrical Standards. The Directorate
represents the Authority on the Grid Code and Distribution Code Review Panels and plays a lead role in
technical and health and safety investigations, which in 2015 included fatal accidents, blackouts and water
production interruptions.

During 2015 the Directorate:

(i) Conducted investigations in relation to fatalities in the electricity sector;

(i)  Conducted a fechnical investigation of the wide-scale power interruption that affected Rusail Grid
on 7 May 2015;

(i)  Conducted a technical investigation of the loss of water production at Sohar Power Plant caused by
flooding from a neighbouring facility’s seawater system;

(iv) Reviewed the development of protection capabilities within the electricity sector against the
recommendations made by the Authority in 2013;

(v) Conducted a review of capital expenditure requirements of OETC to inform the determination of
new price control allowances;

(vi) Reviewed the 2015 system capability statements of MEDC, MJEC, MZEC, RAEC and OETC;

(vii)  Undertook Health and Safety audits of RAEC and MEDC;

(viii) Confirmed that allremaining recommendations from Health and Safety audits of Licensed Production
Facilities were completed satisfactorily;

(ix)  Continued routine inspections of licensed distribution systems to ensure the safety and physical
security of the networks;

(x)  Reviewed the progress of MIS Distribution licensees with regard to compliance of their networks with
the Distribution Security Standards to assess level of non-compliance and determine associated
penalties;

(xi)  Finalised and issued the cyber security standards that came into effect from 1 January 2016;

(xii)  Followed up on the implementation of the Salalah Blackout investigation;

(xiii) Participated in the discussions with PWP on the development of the Spot Market.

(xiv) Supported OETC and Mazoon in an evaluation of the causes of widespread power interruptions in
Shargiyah to identify appropriate remedial measures; and

(xv) Undertook a technical evaluation of desalination facilities on Masirah island.

OETC Price Control Review

As part of a holistic view of the investment needs of OETC, the Authority considered both the capital
expenditure drivers and the technical capability of the licensee to deliver the projects. This assessment
included the way in which OETC planned its investments, the way in which projects were managed, the
effectiveness of training, and how the OETC were ready to take full advantage of the investments.

Grid Code Review Panel
The Grid Code Review Panel (GCRP) met six times during 2015, which represented four regular meetings
and two additional meetings, see Table 12. A large part of the work of the GCRP in 2015 was the review of

proposals to revise the Grid Code, which necessitated an exceptional meeting and for meeting GCRP-43 to
be run over four days (the final two parts in January 2016).
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Table :12 Grid Code Review Panel meetings in 2015

Meeting Meeting date Chaired by Location

GCRP 40 16-Feb-15 OETC Muscat
GCRP 41 04-May-15 OETC Muscat
GCRP 42 03-Aug-15 OETC Muscat
Exceptional Meeting 09-Sept-15 OETC Muscat
GCRP 43 (Part 1) 17-Nov-15 OETC Muscat
GCRP 43 (Part 2) 01-Dec-15 OETC Muscat

Distribution Code Review Panel
The Distribution Code Review Panel (DCRP) met four times during 2015, see Table13.

Table 13: Distribution Code Review Panel meetings in 2015

Meeting Meeting date Chaired by Location
1/2015 05-Feb-15 RAEC Muscat
2/2015 14-May-15 RAEC Muscat
3/2015 07-Sept-15 RAEC Muscat
4/2015 18-Nov-15 RAEC Muscat

During 2015 the DCRP continued its efforts to improve the product and confractor approval processes
and made significant improvements in its assessment of competent protection engineers, and testing and
commissioning engineers.

The improvement in product approval processes is reflected by DCRP issuing 27 new product approvals in
2015, double the figure in 2014. The rigorous progress is increasing the number of quality products available
for use in the electricity sector.
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Licensing & Legal Affairs

The Directorate acts as legal counsel to Authority Members to ensure all Authority decisions comply with
the requirements of the Sector Law and other applicable Laws. The Directorate is responsible for monitoring
compliance with conditions of authorisations granted by the Authority and for maintaining channels of
communication with relevant ministries and competent authorities to ensure the Authority has the information
needed to perform its functions and cooperate with such authorities when required. The Directorate is
responsible for handling applications submitted to the Authority including Licence and License Exemption
applications and applications for approvals and consents. The Directorate is also responsible for maintaining
the public Register.

. Reviewed a licence application from Bahwan Astonfield Solar Power (BASP). The Authority granted
BASP a Generation Licence (Renewable Energy) to authorise Generation of electricity from
its Production Facilities. The maximum authorised capacity will be 303 KW and the output of the
Production Facilities will be sold to the Rural Areas Electricity Company. BASP's Licence is effective
from 1 July 2015 and is the first Licence for Generation of Electricity from renewable energy resources.

J Reviewed a Licence Application from Muscat City Desalination Company (MCDC) as the first
application for a Desalination Licence of a Special Nature following the amendment of the Sector
Law by Royal Decree No. 47L2013. The Authority withheld the grant of the Licence and granted the
MCDC a Licence Exemption to authorise Desalination of water from Desalination Facility of a special
Nature effective from 1 July 2015.The licence Exemption will be replaced by a Desalination Licence
of a Special Nature on successful completion of the project to the satisfaction of the Authority.

. Reviewed a Licence Exemption application from BP Epsilon —-Oman Branch. The company will be
undertaking electricity Generation and water Desalination for the purposes of self-supply and will
operate its fransmission and distribution networks. The Licence Exemption would be granted in 2016
after submission of all additional information required and completion of the process for the grant of
the Licence Exemption.

. In coordination with the Directorate of Technical Regulation, completed the process of modifying all
Licenses (except OPWP Licence) by adding a new condition in relation fo SCADA and DCS Cyber
Security in the Licences. The modification will be effective from 1 January 2016.

. Modified the Generation and Desalination Licence granted to ACWA Power Barka to authorise the
additional Desalination capacity following the Phase Il expansion of the Production Facilities.

. Modified the Distribution and Supply Licence of Dhofar Power Company by expanding the Authorised
Area to be the whole of Dhofar Governorate. This modification allows DPC to supply customers
falling outside its previous authorised area (and network) without affecting RAEC's authorisation to
undertake its activities within the Dhofar governorate. The modification is effective from 1 January
2016.

J Coordinated with other Directorates at the Authority on the modification of the Schedule Charge
Restriction Condition of Oman Power and Water Procurement Company (OPWP) and Oman
Electricity Transmission Company (OETC). The modification is required to facilitate implementation of
new three years price controls and will be effective from 1 January 2016.

. Prepared a new application form for Article (106) consents which will be effective in 2016. The new
application process will standardise the information submitted and provide timelines for completion.
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. Issued a warning notice to the Oman Mining Company (OMCQO) under Article (116) of the Sector
Law. The notice was issued due to the Exemption Holder's failure to comply with Condition (3.3) (b)
(v) of its Licence Exemption.

J Reviewed and approved an application for Approval of Change of Control for Dhofar Generating
Company whereby the ownership of the company changed from EHC to the consortium which won
the competition for the Salalah Il Project. The name of the Licensee remained the same following the
change of control.

. Handled and represented the Authority in a number of litigation cases involving the Authority before
a number of Omani courts. The Authority handled all its cases internally without appointing any
external lawyers.

The Directorate is also involved in a number of issues relating to the GCC Electricity Interconnection
Project. It assisted and coordinated with PAEW in the preparation for Oman’s entry to the GCC Electricity
Inferconnection and the execution of the General Agreement (signed by PAEW) and the Power Exchange
and Trading Agreement (signed by OPWP and OETC) which were signed by the Sultanate in November 2014.
The Authority has drafted access conditions to the OPWP and OETC Licenses and grants the required Export
and Import and the International Inferconnection Licences respectively which will be effective in 2016.
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Independent auditor's report
to the members of
Authority for Electricity Regulation, Oman

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Authority for Electricity
Regulation, O'man, (“the Authority”) which comprise the statement of financial position as at
31 December 2015 and the statements of revenue and expenses, changes in surplus fund and cash
flows for the year then ended. and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information as set out on pages 3 to 19,

Management responsibility for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Intermational Financial Reporting Standards, compliance with the relevant
requirements of the Law for the Regulation and Privatisation of the Electricity and Related Water
Sector (“the Sector Law™), promulgated by the Royal Decree 78/2004 and for such internal control
as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to frawd or error.

Auditor's responsibility

Our responsibility is 1o express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit 1o obtain
reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditer’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatements of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments; the awditor considers internal control
relevant to the Authority’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order 10
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumsiances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectivencss of the Authority’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion,

ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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Deloitte.

Independent auditor's report
to the members of
Authority for Electricity Regulation, Oman (continued)

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements, present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Authority for Electricity Regulation, Oman, as of 31 December 20135, and its
financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

In our opinion, the [linancial statements comply, in all material respects, with the relevam
requirements of the Law for the Regulation and Privatisation of the Electricity and Related Water
Sector (the “*Sector Law™), promulgated by the Royal Decrec 7872004,

(Other matter

The financial statements of the Authority for the vear ended 31 December 2014 were audited by
another auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on those statement on 17 June 2015.

Vel - 7§

Debodine & Touche (M.E.) &
Muacal, Sultannte of Oman
22 June 2016
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AUTHORITY FOR ELECTRICITY REGULATION, OMAN

Statement of financial position
at 31 December 2015

Mofes 2015 2014
RO RO

ASSETS
Mon-current asset
Property and equipment 5 136,968 163,620
Current assels
Prepayments and other receivables 16,950 66,630
Cash and cash equivalent [ 1,403,989 494,350
Total current assets 1,420,939 560,980
Total asseis 1,557,907 724,600
Retained surplus and liabilities
Retained surplus 7 1,378,846 524,345
Liabilities
MNon-current liability
Provision for employees’ end of service benefits 8 120,624 98,279
Current liability
Accruals and other pavables 9 58,437 101,976
Taotal liabilities 179,061 200,255
Total retained surplos and liabilitics 1,557,907 724,600

The financial statements were approved and suthorized foe tssue by the Members on 24 J wadg 2edfy
were signed on their Behalf by:

> 5/

Eseeative Director

Chairman

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.



A

ANNUAL REPORT 2015 e Lt

ALTHORITY FOR ELECTRICITY REGULATICN, OMAN

Statement of revenue and expenses
for the year ended 31 December 205

Nofes IG5 2014

Hi) LY

[.icence toes 10 3292 A5 3006935

[mienest income S.HM 2146

Onlier e .44 2.316
Tatal revenue 305408 JUayy
Salaries and emplos ey telafed coses N 11,751,550} (LA L
Cigreral senel Adoimisiranis e o ypeises i1z (402,250 [403,373)
N T ED T YO B (128,539 (55 304}
I preciation L {bH. 519 R
TFolal expenses (2,450,507 ) I el g |

Surplus for the year 554,501 i aTn

The accompanying moles form an integral pan of s Gnangial snements.
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AUTHORITY FOR ELECTRICITY REGLLATION, OMAN

Statement of changes in surplus fund
fGr the vear ended 31 December 2015

Rerained surplus

R{)
Balanew a1 | Jamvare 2014 250875
Swurplus for e vear 2434
Talawee a1 | Jarary 2015 524 345
Surplus For e vear H54,500
Halance al 11 Decemhber ZHS 1 ATR A6

Che e crmpans i icres Borm an inlepriel part af 1hese Tingicsal sitengnes,
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AUTHORITY FOR ELECTRICITY REGULATION, OMAN

Statement of cash flows
for the year cnded 31 Pecember 2815

s k4
RO Red
Cperafing aclivities
Canht regeipts fromn licensees and apphcation fees for
license ¢xernptions: and her income 3108 408 JO0ES53
U ash paid fo el vvees aond other suppliers (2.351.901) (2 B0 &R
Mt cash from opersling activities 46,507 [6E 133
lovesliog activilies i
Porc hase of property and cyuipment (41.868) (25789
[inaTent ibcom LRI |1} 2.0de
Nt cash used in investing activilics (45 .86R) LM
&l change in cash and cash equivalents 06349 PR L
Cashoand ol egunalents af the beginminge of 1he sear 4043540 330880
Cazh and cash cquivalents a1 the ead of the vear (Note 6) [,40], 989 400 354

The qcornpareeme noles fom ao inleeral part of these Einancial stabemens
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AUTHORITY FOR ELECTRICITY REGLLATION, OMAN

Nates to the financial statements
for the ycar ended 31 December 2015

1. Cieneral

The Aothosiny tor Elecicicios. Repulation, {dhman {heeeafier refemed to as the “Aullnne ™) was
crtablished by Article 149 of (ke Law for the Hepalation and Powatisatem of the Eleciocny and
Related Waier Sector (the “Sectar Law™) proanuleated by the Royal Lecrer 782008 issued on
| Augast 20614,

The Authorits s primanly engaeed o 1he repulation of the elecimeny and related water sector in
the Subamate of Chaan. Under dee Sector Law regulatiog the Soanlusy™s acny ties. the Aathbiorils
levies fees en heensee companies it will smable the Audriny woresover an amaount nal nuere
than M5 eapense s, Accordingly. surpluses of meuaee over eapendituee are held For 1he benefan of
e Do s compsunies as eaplacied o Mate 7 e 1Te Tinancial sLalemens

The registered ollice of the Aatthoriny s PO Bos, 934, Pastal Code 135, AL Rieair, Sl of
Ulrmg.



A

olos - Lypsall g baiiiisn

A N N UA L R E P O RT 20 ] S AUTHORITY FOR ELECTRICITY REGULATION, OMAN

ALTHORITY FOR ELECTRICITY REGULATION, OMAN

MNatcs to the financial statements
for the vear ended 31 December 2015 (vonfinued }

11

1.2

Adoption of new and revised Interpational Finanecial Reporting Standards
([FRS)

Mew and revised IFRSs applicd wilh oo material efTfect on the combioed Gnaacial sislermeois

Tl Tl Don i abes andd reevised TFESs. w i bogame ctlganive for anmgl porinds beginning on o
after 1 Janvaes 2005, e been adapaed in thiese Tinancal sztements The application af these
renised IFRS: Do wed had amy waterial smprace on che amaunes eepuered lar the cuerent amd pring
s i meas alfecl 1he teeagnomg Bar fuiune ransactions or amangeinenis.

" Aniual Improvements to IFRSs 20011 - 2012 Cyvele that includes amendments to 1FRS 2,
IFRS 3, IFRS ® TFRS 13, 1AS [y LAYS 3d and 1AS 35K,

o Aanual Improvements e IERSS 20110 - 2011 Crele thad imclodes amendments oo IFRY E,
IFRS 3, 1FRS 13 and LA 30,

o Amendmients o [AS 18 faepdovee Soaefinn Wwoslanfe the reguirements that relate 0 how
contributivas from emplusees or third poarties Tz are linked 10 service slogld be atimiboted w
pericds ol servive,

New and revised LFRS in issue but oot yer efTective

The Awnherity has nar vet apphicd o Fellowing g aad revised TFRSs than bas g been issugd Dy
are WA vt effeeTive

Eflective Gor snnuzl periods
New amd revised TFRSs beginting on or &flcr

IERS 14 Eegelaton Delereal Aceounts L January 2116

Amerdmerts 190 [AS U Presceiagdeon of Fievavciond Sealirtenia L January 24014
relatifg, 0 Disglesurg initiative

Amcndments to IFRS T fowwr crregrewenis relacing 1n L Janniane 2116
accalntimg for requisitionz of intergsts iy jaint operations

Arvachdments to IAS 1S Progery, Plonr e Egispmicnt and | Damuzrs 2014
IAS 38 St ety relaling o0 elarihisation of
aeseatabl ¢ micthods of darpresiation amd armarTesation

Amendments 1w [AS 16 Progerir. Plant end Rguipaenr and L Bamuane 2116
1A% 4 Agricuftere relating or bearer plants

Amendments § (A5 T Soprerote Frranciad Sotemen | Januar 2116
relating W accvunting  investiments in sebsidianies,  joim

vemuees and asseciates 0 be optiomally zocounted for sing

the equity wethod in separite Finioscrad satements
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wales to 1he Ainaneial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2015 (continued)

1.1

Adoption of new 2nd reévised International Financial Reporting Standards

(TFRS) (continued)
New und reviscd SFRS in issue bul nat vel eeclive (cuntinucd)

wew ynd revised IFRSs

Antadrems e [FRY 10 o oesedefaded Formcaa Staemecars, [FR% LD
T feirery ol Peatararnde apn © e Fopieties aizl TAX 28 favectmread S Arsewciaber
aed Seery Lenngess melating 1o applying the comsolidation ageplion [og
S sshnieal e e

Annnin] Tmpripseineats o IFESs 2012 - 2001 Al |.'-:'|1.'|.'|.‘i|‘|g; arcmdimets L
IFRE 5 IFRS 7. 1A5 19 andd 1A% 24

Elfective for annual permsds
b oAk ol o Al

I Jamuary *ald

1 Jwmiany 24HA

RS 4 Buaiweial Insaeabieis drevassd wersivhs i JHE, 2000, 2005 and 2005 1 Jziman, 2008

HRS 4 inswcet e Bawcmlaer 2009 oineduced oo eguoenkesias o b
clascificatiom arsf measuremeat of finencinl el FEE Y was subusegeenly
antended iz Cerobor 2000 oo anclade reguriecinenes Jor the clagsficacion ad
neaureneent of Srameal fakadioes and for deecogniomg oo e Bessmber
JHIL e ieclude the new reguiremeends fer penentl bedge accennling, Amsthyr
revisssl swlsien of LERS 3 was wsded i Jule 200 neainly we anglude o
il esguirmneniy e Noaoced aeds aml b Daained accondzceans o
e ¢ lassificalion and meieremend neguiremends by inlpcaduging a *Teir s zhae
throueh cabey ecampehensve sooac” JEY TEC ) ncazwienicif Categors fur
certim sinaple AebE s trunens.
A fTisalised werdion of IFRE 9 which conlains oorowniing recusrenvnls Tor
Mmar: sl msboments, replacing DY 39 Fooaoczal Disdromesots: Recoginisa
ar:d Mezsuremeat. The slamkard conkinng requirgments 1 the {iplaw ing jireas:
= Classilicatien amd measeremenl: Firapssl asiets are classified by
reference =0 e business masdel wichin whech her zre Peld and sheir
ruilescimal cask Thow chiaracterasiaes. e MM voraor oL RS 49
arageces i fait valug shrouph vher comperhenzive moome’ calegary for
cemain deba ingirdiue s, Foeaiwcial habaliones are elassifiod g vimnbar
manngr e wpeler (A% 3% howeeer thers oare diflerences in dhe
requinernens applving woahe nwaswreraen af 2 e 's o chedin risk.
¢ Impairment: The 2004 versicn of RS 4 incroduees an 'expseceed eredin
sy’ el Ber the egiorement of the aonpaimen of nancw] assels. so
it im0 longer meceszar, For a orodin eyene 7o haye eocoered beefere a credin
Iy 1 recerpaesd
= Medpe socoonting: Jufroadizees a sew |I.€-I:j"_lE :|.|.'|.'-:|m'.-|ing syl Thid i
designed o by more closels aligned with how eneisies wvdermake sk
wanaeerowd et ibies wlon hedsms Gocid sl noeefinocial ol
EAEHILINY,
& [hercoupnidion: The requiremends fer o derecepntnion of Cnzneial assens
and lakalioes age carrissd forvoard from 145 54

Anwraboeots g [FES T Flageo il D Discloerees celaline 1o
dischosures aboul the amitao apg: heation f FRS

ILRS T Feenpaaedged form amney P hesnees tesiting 40 the addilional hedge
pcouming disledires (and consequen=al aokeedinients ) resallioe From e
intrealnetn of e kedps accoanting chapler o VRS 4

Wlen IFRE % s fursn applicd

When 1IFRS % o5 frra applicd
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MNotes 1o the fEnancial siatements
for the year eoded 3 December 2015 {cantinned)

2

I}

Adeption of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards

(IFRS} {cantinued?
Mew aod revised IFRXS i dsspee bue anl yver effective {continued)

mew and verled TFRS:

IERS LS Smvena, fram Oomdrents Wil 4 waiosers

In !'d“:. 2Ad, JFRS I8 was psweed  wlush establiadied bil'II!I'.!
crmgmediaive mumlel Gar enbitic, W bae o gecowiing Tor revonde afedin
from: cancraces with costonwers. LFRS 15 will supersede the cureenl Tevenwe
recopnition guidince including 1Ay 18 Mevenmes Iy 11 Corsermiction
{omtrenty il Lhe re lies inl.urr.-'rul:l.lil.ln\ when il beoccwnes, efTectse.

The wore pringiple af [FRS 15w dhisl an enlits should recepnio mevenug o
cepier the true fee of proanesad ol ar secy ioes e costoemers 2 Qe ibsent
tlar releens dhe comamdecatonn oo which the citics vapecrss me b chcatled in
vichange for those poods or serveces, Gpecilicilly, dhe slandard introduces
i S-step ApPEEICT L Tevenme pevce it

o« Mepl: Idulll'if}' ther coetezetis ) wiatle & cusbunkir.

v GSiep 2: Mendify the perlormunce wbligaions in the contracl.

r Buep 3 Derermine the sransaction price.

] 5-'.|:|1 d: Allewsise e frpnsichion r.!r'u.'l,: L she Fh.'r:rl:H'llliI.IH.'L' |1|'|li3:|Ii|:|-u|-
ilL thi coMncrace.

4 Hl:p 5- H{!;-I:-E_ﬂi'\il,! rewenyy when [or as} the |,'|:|l'iI:. sitis[ien i
prerburriaee alslisgion.

Cimdee VRS 15, am el recegnises when [or ask s perfonmanee oblygsition
e satsBied, e, owhen ‘contral of the guoads e services godechang me
pariicular perfomeance obligaaon is wanstomed o e casoser, Far oware
proscraplive puidarce has beon added in 1FRS 15 to deal with specilic
s, Furhe e, oubemsees disclosanes 1re required by JFRS L5

IFKS 16 fanres

H-Bh 18 specilics how an IFRS reporier will eecopnise, measure, present
and dscleesy Deises. Tl slandkird presvides o single lessee accounting
fwndel, eevmiring lessdes b revogenis gty and linkiblies for 3ll leases
un e fse lease et s 12 ptaihes oe lees or the lI.II-:l.drl}'IIlE_ mnal Ty g by
walue, Lsads connifue W classi Dy leases os apetrating or lanee, wilth VRS
I's approgch to lessor accownzione sabelantiall uncharesd from s
prodecessor, 14% 17,

Amendments bo IFRS 10 4 sieod e Froaucied Srarcamears and 14% 2R
Savesienenis Ja ol teecigter et feige Pospmees (IO0]) relating we the
tritmsnl ul e siale or cunlnbeicn ol assels Trom and invedor e ids
fenACCIATE 41T FIIRE Neriliare

Effective foe anbudl poeioeds
boginning on or alter

L Lurknears 2414

1 Tunuany SO1Y

Effective dase deferred
inde liniteT:
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Notes to the finaocial statements
for the vear ended 3] December 25 {continued)

2 Adoption of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standands
{JFRS) (cuntinued}

Amaecwent anticipates Thal these wew and revised dandards mterpretatiang ad amend sae s
will b adopbed inche Authorin™s Taaneinl siacensents far the vear fepiooinge | Yeooaes 2078 or s
amd wheln they ace appliceble sawd zdoeptios of these new sndzrds, eterproltions and
anwendmenis, except for IFRS # and IFRS 1350 may bave oo nsabesial ian et g 1he Noancial
searcimgatts o the Syuthonn wthe pericd of mitial applicidion

Rlanagemuont anlicipiatgs it IFRS |15 and IFRS 9 will be walepted an e Authunts s {inancial
stuleanen s Gor e amieuald soar beginoang | Januare 20085, The application of IERS |5 aed ITRS &
niay have sigrificann impaet o oty repeorten] and disclosames made in e Authoriin s
Fmancial statements i respect of revenuye fom contrack with customsers and (he Authorin®s
financial assers und Guanzial liakilinies, Boaever, @oas ool praclizable wopzovide o reasonakble
estinate ol effect of the applicwion ofF e standird e until dhe Aothority perlorns o detailed
Ty EeW,.

Y Summary of sipnilicant agconnling policies
Rusix af preparalion
The Bnan il statentents bhase Tasen prepansd mauccendange st Intermational Finanewl Bepanling
Stedards issned by the Intemational Accounting Standards oard, interpretaliong ioassd by (lae

Internalicaeal Fimuncial BoporTang: interpretations Corronillee snd Ve negquirements of the Sector
L ol the Sublanate ot Chnan.

These Tinancial statenents are presented in Biak Omani (R0Y) sinee thar i e cutoensy of 1
conrdry i s kel e ey of e Andsrie ' s oessclions ane denomimated.

The Felloswimg are e siprofecun agcounting pelicwes s iclbayve been appled consistent
Property and equipment

Prapeny and wyquignae st pore bivsed are pecended ol cosd fegedher wilh zny inctdoneal expenses of
acquisitisn

The eost af peapeny amd copupemcon s writlen ff o egual instalhnents over ther estimated wseiul
eeamanic e as Bullos s

Yeurs
Furature, fintures and office equipmea 57
Yol les =
C omputers 1.4

Cians and losses on disposals o propery and eqwpaent ane determancd by eeference w thgie
carry ine pmounl and sale procceds and are recogitised within uther dnceme e staleinent of
TEnrn el eapaenses,
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Notes to the finanvcial statements
for the vear ended 31 December 2015 {confinusd)

3. Summary of significant aceonnting policies feontinued)
[mpairmeni

Al giwch statement of financial posttion date. the Aodwarity revicws 1he carrvimg amounts ol s
Azsely Lo deternming whetlwer there woamy indication that those osseds e suMered an inpaienaem
loss, [0 any swch indication esists, e recoverdhle amsunt of e 8580t i3 cstanaled i urder e
detenmine e extent of the impaimment bozs. ifan.

The luss arizing on an impaimmen of i asset or cash gewerining vt s determined s rhe
diflersmce between the receverable amaomnt ;i varmyine ameunt of the a<set or cash generaging
vt e is reeoerised imnedintels e staternent of reyenue o expenses,

Where an impiinment bess subsequently reverses, the carmving amaunt of the asset s incocased o
e revised estimdle of ils recoverable amuownt and the snerease 32 recognised as ingome
irmmedade Ty, prosaded il the inereaed carraing amount does nol exceed the carmoang anteon
Maat wnodd T ¢ baeety determinesd had wo ampaiemeol loss been recognised carlier.

Financial innlruments

Financial assets and labilities are recoenised on the statencem of Msncial position s Twen thae
Authority becomes o party W the contraciosl proviiions ot the instcume .

The principal Tinancral instruments are cash and bank balances, Veense foes receivilde, oilwer
réceivables and aceruals and other pavables License fees reeeivable are stated ac their momipg)
wiahey s podieced by allvasmces for doubtful balanees, if any. "'rade and other payalvles ae sansd
Al their samorised cose.

Priov isivns

Prrow iskedts are fecoagaed w hen the Aathonly has o present oblygation as a resolt of g post evenn.
which if is probable, will eesale inan vutdlvs of coumemie bencfiiz 1hat can ke reliably cscinated,

Fmplovees' cad ol service benelits

Pavroent iz made 1 e Fension aed Gratmties Fud for Omani Govemment Eroplosees parsaant
oy the prosasions of the Law of Post Service Pensions and Giratuities $op Oagswn Sovemament
Lmplovecs tesioed be RBoval Decree (26586), a5 amended. Prosisiog is alsa mede Tor amwunts
prveabrle viader the Onaan Labeur Law applicable w0 expatriate employees, and 35 Biraed on curment
remunerition amd actumulated periods of service A1 e statemess ol Tnaeial pestion dane.

(Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpse o cash few statcment, cash and ¢ash equivalents consist o cash on hand angd
hank kalincus meatunng within three mwnths Fon the dale of placement.
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Notes ti the financial stalements
for the vear ended 31 Necember 2015 {cantinoed)

3. Summary of significant acevunting pelicies {coolinucd)

Licenee Nees

| iceoce bees represent dhe amoeums imyodved 1o the Toemsees for e vea.

Furcipa cobrencies

Transactions denominated in foreipgm cormemcivs entersd inte duringe e vear Biove been mnslned
intee Rials Ommn and recoerded a1 the mes of exchange presaching an the dates s iunsacTeons
Tureign currency monclan, asseds and habalities at the repartinge date are tenslined a1 1he raees of
exchange prevailing o that date. Txelange differences that arse are 1aken me the scagzngng af
revenus and expeascs.

Larants relaked To asscls

Coovernmeent grionts i1 Mg Ten ol Treeleld ad are svcdited 1o stpdenient of income and expensc:
brere ae ralbogaal basis exists for allesating the grant 10 3 period ather 1han the one i which i1 was
rectived. Ooverrnent wratts velated 190 assers e vredited o defenned pranes and recopnioed in the
sitament of ineomge and expanses over the nsctul lite of the assets constrocted or acguirned.

Taxzlion
The Autharity s cxempt from taaatioon ws par Anicle (56 ) of e Sector Lo
Criticul acconating judgements and key souwrce of eslimation uncertainiy

In preparing abe financial stalements, the manspement 5 reguired w make estimates wnd
assumptinns which affest reprrted resenue and expenses. aseeli, Babilities and related dizclosores.
The ute of availahle infonnatem and application of judgment based an kistoneal experience and
wher faciors are inherent in the fonnztion of sstmates. Actoal resulis iw the future conld dilfer
Irom such estimales.

Livemoe fres
Che significant estimate in 1he prepacaticn of Oiese fsancial statements s peomarly inorespect of
bicenee fee income to be recovered inorospect of regutaticn by the Aothanty of the lieensed
SO PAnkCs.

L

Nepreciating is charged 20 05 1wl ol 1he oozl af dasers over their cstimaned wactul Tivgs.
The calculanioar of waelnl] lives s based on omanemsn s assessment ot sarines Tactes such
as The vpeeating eveles the mamenanee propeams, dnd weemal wear and war wsge s bust
(LT TH {1
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 3E Decensher 2015 (continued}

4.  Finzncia! risk management

Finmcial insiromonts cammied vn the siement of fwancial position comprise cash and hank
balanes. licemwse fees recenable. other progivahles and accruals and sther payatles.

Finamecianh zmsets arg astased fop indicaters of impaimmaent a1 each repoedting daie. Finanaial et
are anpairgd wheee there i abjeetive evidence thal @i a result of one or mane events thal vecsmed
afier (b anjnal pegogpation ot the tinancial asset, 1he catimated Oture cash Fowey have been

e d

Tl clpssitication of financial assets depends on the purpese For s bich e Pirncial assets were
acuited. Management determines the elassificiation of fs financial asaets at il reowenilion.

Finnneaal sk Tactors
Chve P

The Authority’s activilies expose 1 w3 voriels ol Begoed rishs marker sk credn tisk and
hyuidity risk. The  Aotherin s osverall ask managemcm peogeamme  focuses s the
unpredictabilits of financisl madkgrs amd secks 10 minomise poaswial adverse clisers on the
Authority's finarcial perfonnanse.

Kizk mansevment s ocaried ont Do finanee depaniment umder policics approned Tt thy
mzipe el

Credit risk

Credit rish is the rish of faancial ks o the Alnninye o a Teopsee o sounterpay teea Mliancial
rstounn it Tils G anieet ils womrscinal obligalions and arises pringipally froo e Ancthants s
e ivikeles fronn Ficer sues

Lecerce few srel otfer recervearbiie
The Authority's exposere 1 credic rsk is anfleenced mainly e 1he wedisadoal chavacterisgics of
each heensee, AN licensees aee Bised v Solian e ol Cman

The potential risk i respeet of ameunts recevable s lmted 1w dier camoing walstes s
management repularlhy reviews these balanees whese recoweeabiliny is in doukbl,
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ALTHORITY FOR ELECTRICITY REGULATION, OMAN

Notes to the linancial siatements
for the year cnded 31 December 2815 (contintted )

4.  Financial risk management (continged)
Financial risk Gclar (continucd )
Liguidity risk

Ligundits resk i5 the resk 1hat the Authority will ot be able b moeet e Tinanesal abligario s o e
full dut. The Awthoriee's approach (o managing liguidity e B cmsnre, a8 G as possible, thn
will hawe sufficiem ligundite b meed 0= Labilidies when doe, under b soemal and sorgssad
verdilions. weathout i wring unaceepiabbe loszes oF riching damage b the Aotharily s repanilion.

Trypicalls. the Autheriny cosures ol 00 s sufbicienl cash on demaml do meet expesoed
vpertional expen=s. This eacludes the pelential impact ol extreme circwmslances thal canwd
reasonalbls e predicied, sech as nanaral disasters.

Mlarket risk

Marker risk i the risk that elanges i macker pricas, sush as forgien eachampe ciles. iolerest mates
Afeet the Aothoris ™~ income or the valie o i heldings of Amneial instruenents. The objective
of markel rish managemen is o manage aod contol marken rish exposures within aceeplable
parameter, wiile opimizing e e

Forcige currency risk

The Authoey™s funetional amd  presemation comrensy 35 Rial Omae and e Authorin™s
perfommance 5 suhstantially independent of chamges an forgign curremes raes. There ane no
significanl financial instruments denomnated o Goreign cunengy aed eonsequently. Toretpn
curmeney Tisk B nol sigm e,

Interest rate risk

The Awutleunity has balances with banks. which are ntersar dearing and eaposed e chanees in
PArker el Tares.

¢ apital manapemcnt

The Authonily™s abjectves whon managing capital are o safeeaard the aothedn's ahbilin
comninue a5 a gowng congent and benefn enher stikeholders, Tl Autlwrity b= we subjoct 1
externally inpascd capital requinenients (Mate 1)

Fair value of Noancial instroments

Fair sidue ol the Tinasckid instnoments approesconiie to i cams g siiee ol (e slidcmem of
Trmecial e itiaen dalse,
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ALTHORITY FOR FLECTRICITY REGULATTON, OMAN

Notes to the financial scatements
for the year ended 31 December 2015 (cantinied)

E.

Froperty and equipment

L ast
AL lapsuay 2015
."‘u.‘ll.‘li1i-::-|'|:u

AL Janwary 205
Addindvess

Thiupumaaly

AL December M1X
Depreciation

Ai L Tapuars 2014

L arge fur The year

Al Jaowary M5
Charge for e scar
Idisparials

A131 December 2005

Carrving velue
At 3 Deceonbar 2015

A2 Dheeember 24063

Furniturs,
fistures und
ofTiee
capuiproeat Yohickes Computers Totad
HL) Ri) RO RO}
ek, 117 1314075 134,572 553 %40
244 143, 700k a0 26 TEY
Pyl Y| (50,775 139,613 560,749
10,593 U MH} 1,175 +1 908
] {20640 : 120,600
2HI, 354 160,175 140,558 LT
EILERE 158 | &0 321898
EX ALY 10,624 [ 2497 TEIn
179,743 i ) 129,404 3FT, 125
40044 13445 L | b 63519
- {30 5549 - (20,599]
119,782 LR ] 134625 5,040
61,162 69,547 6,250 136.%68
Lhb & L% 61 5Has 10,003 [a3,620

The Minisdne of Hoewsing allatted 3000 Sgi of Tl o the Authorits in 3015 m Plsd %o 1516 @
Hawsher. The land is givew Tree of cost {or the purpose of conscucting olffice Taalding for 1he
Autherity. The Authorin: cannaot oae 1he lagd B wy ollikr purposes. The nanagemenl is showing
o T At eera valne s Lhe land can b only wie for e puepose desigoaned by the Sinisin .

Cash and cash eguivalents

Lucly on hand
Caalam bank

2015 20l

HeD Rt

Gl i
1,403,08% KL £
1,403,589 491,350
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AUTHORITY FOR FELECTRICITY REGULATION, OMAN

Notes ta the fimancial statements
for the vear ended 31 December 2015 {continued)

10,

11.

Herained sarplus
The setained swrplus represents the cumulatisg anoimt of excess or deficil of income over

expenditune which will be odtus againa Gulure Tnding requiremends i accordance with Ariche
iz afihe Scctor] aw.

Provision for emplovees’ end of servied benefits

M1s 20la
H1{) Fi
A1 | Janmary ¥R.ZTY 1500739
Maicd dwring 1he year - { T8 38T
Chaege Fog the sear (3ol (1) 11,345 2129
At 3l December 120,624 08270
Accruals and ather payzbies
Acorails 50,252 1,20
3ther pay ablues LES Ths
58,437 01,978
Licenss fres
Liceace Tews representt 1he amounts invaiced to Boensees for the year
Salaries and employce relaied costs
Salaries wod allowances 1 AR%D.501 [.337.534
Cost of ead ob service beesln s for expitriaty
s {3 o B) 21345 2702y

Captribution 1o defined contribution retirenent plin 119,855 Lovr. 24y
(hr cmplover nelated costs 128 989 [ -8

1,751,5%) LELRYR
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AUTHORITY FOR ELECTRICITY REGULATION, OMAN

Motes fo the financial statements
for the vear ended 31 December 2015 {continued}

12, Lrenceal and administralive expenses

Fint

[nsurame:

Commurnicativm
Advericement and pubiicin
Trivelling wnd conviance
Proting and statione ry
URIT [1 TN

Repaim aned mndintvnanee
Mliseellarean s ¢ spewses

13, Taxation

M5
RO

172 Ry
651
14,2000
13
42,799
12,170
LATE ]
SA3%
64,743

402,159

The Autlority is cxem|H Iram &axalion 1 fee Anigle §38) ol 1he Sectoz Law.

14. Related party transactions

2014
KL

172 R0N
-19,9A1
[ 3,tH11
X603
40,586
[-h.(F700

TR

ol 3

e

Tl.a44

403,571

——————

The Authorily caters to Trangaeneis o the nomital course ol Pusaiess wath 1he © haiman and
Members, Thesy fransactions are gndgrgd ipde al ferns and condilians wlael il marnagenenl

helicves could be ohiained on an an's leopds basis o independent ipd padios,

SUchL Transact ions eomprise compensatiom o kee mandgemnent peescane | wbicl aman ied o

Shorl derm cmHos e bkenedils

F-red of semvice henefits:

2015
RO

194,767

6372

2014
RO

1o5.67]

5,24

e —
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AUTHORITY FOR ELECTRICITY REGULATION, OMAN

Netes to the financial statements
for the yexr ended 3] December 2HS jcontinued)

15 Credit risk
Exposure to credif risk

The carmying amouns of financial assets represents e maxioom credin espesare. The exposene o
credin risk g fhue Tepoting Jite sas e acomms of

2UT5 il

Bt Re

Chilver receivables 4,934 Lt
I5ank balwnces 1,403,054 4003 B
1L 40A 05 w3143

Licenee fees recerable al e reporting date were past due faor ol daz s 42001, el dioes

16. Liquidity risk

The follow g arg g wentoeinige wf the Emacril lakilices,

201% iy
Carrying 6 munlbs C ATy N T
amoont ar jens ST or fesy
Hi) Ri! Bik R
Aruals &R 281 58,252 g 161,210
CrLler oy ab e 145 1E% Tah TG
55427 54437 1] W6 Lk AT

17. [oterest rate risk

At 1he vepacuing o<, the Awthority 's interesl eaninge fnaecial Sngbnnssenes was

Mils R}
Hi) Hiy
FEveed pedicr FMSIFLICTIFS
Tarsnarial wsw s 1.403.077 AV N
18. Tommirments
Lherating <armmeliments 144,582 11.743
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AUTHORITY FOR ELECTRICITY REGULATION, OMAN

Licence Holders

Majan Electricity Company SAOC (Member of Nama Group)
Regulated Activities: the Distribution and Supply of electricity to Premises

Mazoon Electricity Company SAOC (Member of Nama Group)
Regulated Activities: the Distribution and Supply of electricity to Premises

Muscat Electricity Company Distribution SAOC (Member of Nama Group) r(j’
Regulated Activities: the Distribution and Supply of electricity to Premises Y,

Oman Electricity Transmission Company SAOC (Member of Nama Group)
Regulated Activities: the Transmission and Dispatch of electricity

Rural Areas Electricity Company SAOC
Regulated of Activities: the Generation and Desalination; Transmission; Dispatch; Distribution *
and supply of electricity & Bulk supply of desalinated water to Water Departments

Wadi Al Jizzi Power Company SAOC N
Regulated Activity: the Generation of electricity \ /

Al Rusail Power Company SAOC 4 ‘
Regulated Activity: the Generation of electricity idllafisi

LRI

Al Ghubrah Power and Desalination Company SAOC
Regulated Activity: the Generation of electricity and Desalination of water

Al Kamil Power Company SAOC AN
Regulated Activity: the Generation of electricity B, A

United Power Company SAOC
Regulated Activity: the Generation of electricity

ACWA Power Barka SAOC
Regulated Activity: the Generation of electricity and Desalination of water

SMN Barka Power Company SAOC
Regulated Activity: the Generation of electricity and Desalination of water

Sohar Power Company SAOC #
Regulated Activity: the Generation of electricity and Desalination of water ,.'-'UH r 'm‘

5 ;
Oman Power and Water Procurement Company SAOC (Member of Nama Group) 7
Regulated Activities: Demand Forecasting; capacity procurement; bulk supply Q O )\5\;
of electricity & water and procurement of electricity and desalinated water =/

Sembcorp Salalah Power & Water Company SAOC
Regulated Activities: the Generation of electricity and Desalination of water

Al Batinah Power Company SAOC | ﬂ"
Regulated Activities: the Generation of Electricity s el

Al Suwadi Power Company SAOC
Regulated Activities: the Generation of Electricity

ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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Licence Holders

Phoenix Power Company SAOC
Regulated Activity : the Generation of Electricity

Dhofar Power Company SAOC (Member of Nama Group)
Regulated Activity : the Distribution and Supply of electricity to Premises

Dhofar Generating Company SAOC
Regulated Activity : the Generation of Electricity

00T

Bahwan Astonfield Solar Power LLC
Regulated Activity : the Generation of Electricity (Renewable Energy)
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AUTHORITY FOR ELECTRICITY REGULATION, OMAN

ANNUAL REPORT 2015

Licence Exemption Holders

Sohar International Urea Chemical Industries SAOC
Regulated Activities : the Generation of electricity co-located with the Desalination of
water in the same site.

Oman Mining Company LLC
Regulated Activities: the Generation; Distribution; and Supply of electricity

Oman India Fertiliser Company SAOC
Regulated Activities: the Generation of electricity and Desalination of water

Oman Cement Company SAOG
Regulated Activities: the Generation; Distribution; and Supply of electricity

Barr Al Jissah Resort Company SAOC
Regulated Activities: the Distribution of electricity

=]
ShangriLas
Aloc diblm donlly faiin
Barr Al Jissah Resort & Spa

SULTANATE OF OMAN

Oman Refineries and Petrchemicals company LLC
Regualted Activities : the Generation of elecricity and Desalination of water ;
Distribution and supply of electricity to Premises.

Q_Qi
Or'pjl%

Oman LNG LLC
Regualted Activities : the Generation of electricity and Desalination of water ;
Distribution and Supply of electrcity.

Petroleum Development Oman LLC .4""
Regulated Activities: the Generation; Distribution; Transmission; and Supply of electricity 'Q‘."‘
Occidental of Oman INC -
- . T . oOxXY
Regulated Activities: the Generation and Distribution of electricity O

Sohar Aluminium company LLC
Regulated Activities : the Generation of electrcity co-located with Desalination of water ;
Distribution and transmission of electricity.

Shargiyah Desalination Company SAOC
Regulated Activities: the Generation of electricity co-located with the Desalination of
water in the same site.

Occidental Mukhaizna
Regulated Activities: the Generation of electricity and Desalination of water; and the
Distribution of electricity

Ministry of Defence
Regulated Activity : the Generation of electricity for Sale to PWP

Muscat City Desalination company SAOC
Regulated Activity : the Desalination of water from a Desalination Facility of a Special
Nature.
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AUTHORITY FOR ELECTRICITY REGULATION, OMAN
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Electricity Sector Statistics
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AUTHORITY FOR ELECTRICITY REGULATION, OMAN

ANNUAL REPORT 2015

Table 4

Electricity Supply & Registered Accounts by Region & Company: 2014 and 2015

2014

Region

Al Dahirah

Al Sharquia North
Al Sharquia South
Al Wusta

Burami

Dakhliyah

Dhofar

Musandam
Muscat

North Batinah
South Batinah

Company

Majan
Mazoon
Mazoon
RAEC
Majan
Mazoon
DPC
RAEC
RAEC
Muscat
Majan

Mazoon

Sultanate Totals 2014

2015

Region

Al Dahirah

Al Sharquia North
Al Sharquia South
Al Wusta

Burami

Dakhliyah

Dhofar

Musandam
Muscat

North Batinah
South Batinah

Company

Majan
Mazoon
Mazoon
RAEC
Majan
Mazoon
DPC
RAEC
RAEC
Muscat
Majan

Mazoon

Sultanate Totals 2015

Change from 2014 (%)

MWh Supplied

790,356
910,721
1,179,747
296,148
669,014
1,870,177
2,327,270
162,498
288,473
8,688,583
5,244,039
2,745,064

25,172,090

MWh Supplied

919,935
1,030,116
1,247,054

322,805
742,107
2,081,034
2,583,442
181,026
312,589

10,103,710
6,196,418
3,192,238

28,912,474
14.9%

%
Oman

3.1%
3.6%
4.7%
1.2%
2.7%
7.4%
9.2%
0.6%
1.1%
34.5%
20.8%
10.9%

%
Oman

3.2%
3.6%
4.3%
1.1%
2.6%
7.2%
8.9%
0.6%
1.1%
34.9%
21.4%
11.0%

Accounts

44,224
62,634
60,086
12,640
32,140
98,044
84,127
5,696
12,568
284,625
110,241
120,159

927,184

Accounts

47,028
67,106
64,239
13,635
33,777
106,249
92,718
6,286
13,266
309,803
117,200
129,122

1,000,429
7.9%

%
Oman

4.8%
6.8%
6.5%
1.4%
3.5%
10.6%
9.1%
0.6%
1.4%
30.7%
11.9%
13.0%

%
Oman

4.7%
6.7%
6.4%
1.4%
3.4%
10.6%
9.3%
0.6%
1.3%
31.0%
11.7%
12.9%

MWh Supply
per Account

17.9
14.5
19.6
23.4
20.8
19.1
27.7
28.5
23.0
30.5
47.6
22.8

27.1

MWh Supply
per Account

19.6
15.4
19.4
23.7
22.0
19.6
27.9
28.8
23.6
32.6
52.9
24.7

28.9
6.9%
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Table 5

Electricity Production by System: 2012 to 2015

2012
System

Main Interconnected System
Rural Systems

Dhofar Power System
Total for 2012

2013
System

Main Interconnected System
Rural Systems

Dhofar Power System
Total for 2013

2014
System

Main Interconnected System
Rural Systems

Dhofar Power System
Total for 2014

2015
System

Main Interconnected System
Rural Systems

Dhofar Power System

Total for 2015

Electricity Production

Gross MWh % Year Net MWh
22,040,849 88.1% 21,619,110
605,204 2.4% 555,953
2,371,250 9.5% 2,269,347
25,017,303 24,444,411

Electricity Production

Gross MWh % Year Net MWh
22,922,968 87.4% 22,558,036
685,004 2.6% 635,315
2,632,050 10.0% 2,467,914
26,240,023 25,661,264

Electricity Production

Gross MWh % Year Net MWh
25,544,153 87.7% 24,993,101
756,712 2.6% 698,134
2,836,231 9.7% 2,651,662
29,137,095 28,342,898

Electricity Production

Gross MWh % Year Net MWh
28,772,266 87.8% 28,333,588
863,105 2.6% 807,022
3,122,649 9.5% 2,941,665
32,758,020 32,082,276

% Year

88.4%
2.3%

9.3%

% Year

87.9%
2.5%

9.6%

% Year

88.2%
2.5%

9.4%

% Year

88.3%
2.5%

9.2%
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Table 6
Electricity Production by System and Company: 2014 & 2015

Electricity Production

2014 Gross MWh % Oman Net MWh % Oman
A: Main Interconnected System
ACWA Power Barka SAOG 2,989,303 10.3% 2,746,364 9.7%
Al Batinah PC SAOC 3,722,410 12.8% 3,618,816 12.8%
Al Ghubrah SAOC 2,244,116 7.7% 2,094,154 7.4%
Al Kamil SAOG 1,252,347 4.3% 1,238,944 4.4%
Al Rusail SAOG 3,694,883 12.7% 3,665,728 12.9%
Al Suwadi PC SAOC 3,239,171 11.1% 3,140,095 11.1%
Phoenix Power Company SAOC 1,544,832 5.3% 1,542,617 5.4%
PWP purchases 530,198 1.9%
SMN Barka SAOG 1,418,843 4.9% 1,247,426 4.9%
Sohar Power Company SAOG 3,753,721 12.9% 3,497,347 12.3%
UPC Manah SAOG 1,110,785 3.8% 1,102,269 3.9%
Wadi Jizzi SAOC 573,741 2.0% 569,143 2.0%
MIS sub-total 25,544,153 87.7% 24,993,101 88.2%

B: Rural Systems
RAEC SAOC 756,712 2.6% 698,134 2.5%

Rural Systems sub-total 756,712 2.6% 698,134 2.5%

C: Dhofar Power System

DGC SAOC 953,461 3.3% 940,687 3.3%
SembcorpSalalah SAOC 1,882,770 6.5% 1,710,975 6.0%
Dhofar System sub-total 2,836,231 9.7% 2,651,662 9.4%
Totals for 2014 29,137,095 100% 28,342,898 100%
Electricity Production
2015 Gross MWh % Oman Net MWh % Oman
A: Main Interconnected System
ACWA Power Barka SAOG 3,332,758 10.2% 3,066,619 9.6%
Al Batinah PC SAOC 4,243,317 13.0% 4,156,640 13.0%
Al Ghubrah SAOC 1,950,878 6.0% 1,791,029 5.6%
Al Kamil SAOG 584,968 1.8% 578,043 1.8%
Al Rusail SAOG 3,682,283 11.2% 3,654,459 11.4%
Al Suwadi PC SAOC 3,928,018 12.0% 3,834,487 12.0%
Phoenix Power Company SAOC 4,390,644 13.4% 4,390,472 13.7%
PWP purchases 657,289 2.0%
SMN Barka SAOG 1,337,919 4.1% 1,151,492 3.6%
Sohar Power Company SAOG 3,602,622 11.0% 3,345,730 10.4%
UPC Manah SAOG 1,303,166 4.0% 1,293,871 4.0%
Wadi Jizzi SAOC 415,692 1.3% 413,458 1.3%
MIS sub-total 28,772,266 87.8% 28,333,588 88.3%
% change from 2014 12.6% 13.4%
B: Rural Systems
Bahwan Astonfied Solar Power LLC 358 0.0% 332 0.0%
RAEC SAOC 862,747 2.6% 806,691 2.5%
Rural Systems sub-total 863,105 2.6% 807,022 2.5%
% change from 2014 14.1% 15.6%
C: Dhofar Power System
DGC SAOC 1,079,521 3.3% 1,065,900 3.3%
PWP purchases 0 0.0% 2,429 0.0%
SembcorpSalalah SAOC 2,043,128 6.2% 1,873,337 5.8%
Dhofar System sub-total 3,122,649 9.5% 2,941,665 9.2%
% change from 2014 10.1% 10.9%
Totals for 2015 32,758,020 100% 32,082,276 100%
Actual change from 2014 3,620,925 3,739,378

% change from 2014 12.4% 13.2%
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Table 7
Electricity Production by Region: 2014 and 2015
2014 Electricity Production
Region MWh Gross % Oman MWh Net % Oman
Al Dahirah 947 0.0% 894 0.0%
Al Shargiya 2,871,063 9.9% 2,843,556 10.0%
Al Wusta 177,510 0.6% 160,016 0.6%
Dakhliyah 1,110,785 3.8% 1,102,269 3.9%
Dhofar 3,008,447 10.3% 2,813,455 9.9%
Musandam 332,155 1.1% 315,131 1.1%
Muscat 5,938,999 20.4% 5,774,074 20.4%
North Batinah 8,049,872 27.6% 8,199,617 28.9%
South Batinah 7,647,317 26.2% 7,133,885 25.2%
Totals for 2014 29,137,095 28,342,898
2015 Electricity Production
Region MWh Gross % Oman MWh Net % Oman
Al Dahirah 1,282 0.0% 1,246 0.0%
Change from 2014 (%) 35.4% 39.4%
Al Shargiya 4,975,613 15.2% 4,968,603 15.5%
Change from 2014 (%) 73.3% 74.7%
Al Wusta 296,646 0.9% 280,177 0.9%
Change from 2014 (%) 67.1% 75.1%
Dakhliyah 1,303,166 4.0% 1,293,871 4.0%
Change from 2014 (%) 17.3% 17.4%
Dhofar 3,329,614 10.2% 3,140,597 9.6%
Change from 2014 (%) 10.7% 11.6%
Musandam 358,212 1.1% 343,270 1.1%
Change from 2014 (%) 7.8% 8.9%
Muscat 5,633,161 17.2% 5,439,879 17.0%
Change from 2014 (%) -5.1% _5.8%
North Batinah 8,261,631 25.2% 8,562,036 26.7%
Change from 2014 (%) 2.6% 4.4%
South Batinah 8,598,695 26.2% 8,052,598 25.1%
Change from 2014 (%) 12.4% 12.9%
Totals for 2015 32,758,020 32,082,276
12.9% 13.2%

Change from 2014 (%)

Note: Net electricity production includes PWP and RAEC purchases from entities in each Region
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Gross MWh

Electricity Production

% Oman

Table 8

Electricity Production by Region and Company: 2014 and 2015
2014

Region Company

Al Dahirah RAEC SAOC

Al Sharaiva Al Kamil SAOG
Phoenix Power Company SAOC
PWP purchases

RAEC SAOC
Al Wusta PWP purchases

RAEC SAOC
Dakhlivah UPC Manah SAOG
Dhofar DGC SAOC

RAEC SAOC

SembcorpSalalah SAOC
Musandam  RAEC SAOC
Muscat Al Ghubrah SAOC
Al Rusail SAOG
PWP purchases
North BatinahAl Batinah PC SAOC
PWP purchases
Sohar Power Companv SAOG
Wadi Jizzi SAOC
South BatinahACWA Power Barka SAOG
Al Suwadi PC SAOC
SMN Barka SAOG
Sultanate Totals 2014

2015
Region Company
Al Dahirah RAEC SAOC
Al Sharaiva Al Kamil SAOG
Phoenix Power Company SAOC
PWP purchases
RAEC SAOC
Al Wusta PWP purchases
RAEC SAOC
Dakhlivah UPC Manah SAOG
Dhofar Bahwan Astonfied Solar Power
DGC SAOC
PWP purchases
RAEC SAOC
SembcorpSalalah SAOC
Musandam  RAEC SAOC
Muscat Al Ghubrah SAOC
Al Rusail SAOG
PWP purchases
North Batinah Al Batinah PC SAOC
PWP purchases
Sohar Power Company SAOG
Wadi Jizzi SAOC
South BatinahACWA Power Barka SAOG
Al Suwadi PC SAOC
SMN Barka SAOG
Sultanate Totals 2015
Change from 2014 (%)

947
1,252,347
1,544,832

73,884

177,510
1,110,785
953,461
172,216
1,882,770
332,155
2,244,116
3,694,883

3,722,410

3,753,721
573,741
2,989,303
3,239,171
1,418,843

29,137,095

Gross MWh

1,282
584,968
4,390,644

296,646
1,303,166
358
1,079,521
0
206,608
2,043,128
358,212
1,950,878
3,682,283

4,243,317

3,602,622
415,692
3,332,758
3,928,018
1,337,919
32,758,020

12.9%

0.0%
4.3%
5.3%

0.3%

0.6%
3.8%
3.3%
0.6%
6.5%
1.1%
7.7%
12.7%

12.8%

12.9%
2.0%
10.3%
11.1%
4.9%

Net MWh

894
1,238,944
1,542,617

201

61,795
1,494
158,522
1,102,269
940,687
161,793
1,710,975
315,131
2,094,154
3,665,728
14,192
3,618,816
514,311
3,497,347
569,143
2,746,364
3,140,095
1,247,426
28,342,898

Electricity Production

% Oman
0.0%
1.8%

13.4%

0.9%
4.0%
0.0%
3.3%
0.0%
0.6%
6.2%
1.1%
6.0%
11.2%

13.0%

11.0%
1.3%
10.2%
12.0%
4.1%

Net MWh

1,246
578,043
4,390,472
88

16,601
263,576
1,293,871
332
1,065,900
2,429
198,600
1,873,337
343,270
1,791,029
3,654,459
-5,608
4,156,640
646,208
3,345,730
413,458
3,066,619
3,834,487
1,151,492
32,082,276

13.2%

% Oman

0.0%
4.4%
5.4%
0.0%
0.2%
0.0%
0.6%
3.9%
3.3%
0.6%
6.0%
1.1%
7.4%
12.9%
0.1%
12.8%
1.8%
12.3%
2.0%
9.7%
11.1%
4.4%

% Oman
0.0%
1.8%

13.7%
0.0%

0.1%
0.8%
4.0%
0.0%
3.3%
0.0%
0.6%
5.8%
1.1%
5.6%
11.4%
0.0%
13.0%
2.0%
10.4%
1.3%
9.6%
12.0%
3.6%
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Table 9 i

Monthly Electricity Production by System: MIS 2012 to 2015

2012 Electricity Production

Gross % Net %

System Month GWh Year GWh Year
MIS Jan-12 1,218.3 5.5% 1,137.3 5.3%
MIS Feb-12 1,146.7 5.2% 1,067.1 4.9%
MIS Mar-12 1,417.3 6.4% 1,357.0 6.3%
MIS Apr-12 1,651.9 7.5% 1,574.4 7.3%
MIS May-12 2,297.6 10.4% 2,283.2 10.6%
MIS Jun-12 2,361.8 10.7% 2,407.4 11.1%
MIS Jul-12 2,491.1 11.3% 2,555.7 11.8%
MIS Aug-12 2,453.4 11.1% 2,409.7 11.1%
MIS Sep-12 2,339.4 10.6% 2,239.4 10.4%
MIS Oct-12 1,828.1 8.3% 1,848.3 8.5%
MIS Nov-12 1,509.4 6.8% 1,488.3 6.9%
MIS Dec-12 1,325.9 6.0% 1,251.3 5.8%
2012 Totals 22,040.8 21,619.1

2013 Electricity Production

Gross % Net %

System Month GWh Year GWh Year
MIS Jan-13 1,307.3 5.7% 1,234.0 5.5%
MIS Feb-13 1,222.6 5.3% 1,157.4 5.1%
MIS Mar-13 1,584.6 6.9% 1,514.9 6.7%
MIS Apr-13 1,813.3 7.9% 1,727.3 7.7%
MIS May-13 2,228.2 9.7% 2,196.6 9.7%
MIS Jun-13 2,482.2 10.8% 2,517.8 11.2%
MIS Jul-13 2,695.0 11.8% 2,643.1 11.7%
MIS Aug-13 2,502.9 10.9% 2,468.7 10.9%
MIS Sep-13 2,293.1 10.0% 2,331.0 10.3%
MIS Oct-13 2,143.7 9.4% 2,116.0 9.4%
MIS Nov-13 1,461.1 6.4% 1,427.6 6.3%
MIS Dec-13 1,188.9 5.2% 1,223.8 5.4%

2013 Totals 22,923.0 22,558.0
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Table 9 i

Monthly Electricity Production by System: MIS 2012 to 2015

2014 Electricity Production

Gross % Net %

System Month GWh Year GWh Year
MIS Jan-14 1,333.9 5.2% 1,257.8 5.0%
MIS Feb-14 1,227.3 4.8% 1,162.2 4.7%
MIS Mar-14 1,621.5 6.3% 1,542.4 6.2%
MIS Apr-14 2,090.3 8.2% 2,023.7 8.1%
MIS May-14 2,528.5 9.9% 2,561.9 10.3%
MIS Jun-14 2,927.7 11.5% 2,913.0 11.7%
MIS Jul-14 2,968.7 11.6% 2,957.2 11.8%
MIS Aug-14 2,655.7 10.4% 2,693.8 10.8%
MIS Sep-14 2,694.0 10.5% 2,602.9 10.4%
MIS Oct-14 2,359.0 9.2% 2,268.9 9.1%
MIS Nov-14 1,694.8 6.6% 1,622.0 6.5%
MIS Dec-14 1,442.8 5.6% 1,387.3 5.6%
2014 Totals 25,544.2 24,993.1

2015 Electricity Production

Gross % Net %

System Month GWhH Year GWh Year
MIS Jan-15 1,506.8 5.2% 1,435.1 5.1%
MIS Feb-15 1,532.5 5.3% 1,460.0 5.2%
MIS Mar-15 1,900.3 6.6% 1,806.5 6.4%
MIS Apr-15 2,450.7 8.5% 2,365.9 8.4%
MIS May-15 2,952.0 10.3% 2,921.2 10.3%
MIS Jun-15 3,044.7 10.6% 3,066.1 10.8%
MIS Jul-15 3,220.9 11.2% 3,257.4 11.5%
MIS Aug-15 3,041.4 10.6% 3,073.0 10.8%
MIS Sep-15 2,819.9 9.8% 2,833.6 10.0%
MIS Oct-15 2,562.7 8.9% 2,548.7 2.0%
MIS Nov-15 2,127.3 7.4% 2,041.0 7.2%
MIS Dec-15 1,613.1 5.6% 1,525.0 5.4%
2015 Totals 28,772.3 28,333.6
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Table 9 ii
Monthly Electricity Production by System: Rural Systems 2012 to 2015

2012 Electricity Production
Gross % Net %
System Month GWh Year GWh Year
Rural Systems Jan-12 28.2 4.7% 25.0 4.5%
Rural Systems Feb-12 27.9 4.6% 24.9 4.5%
Rural Systems Mar-12 36.5 6.0% 33.1 6.0%
Rural Systems Apr-12 49.5 8.2% 45.5 8.2%
Rural Systems May-12 63.8 10.5% 58.9 10.6%
Rural Systems Jun-12 62.7 10.4% 58.0 10.4%
Rural Systems Jul-12 65.8 10.9% 60.7 10.9%
Rural Systems Aug-12 67.7 11.2% 62.7 11.3%
Rural Systems Sep-12 64.7 10.7% 60.1 10.8%
Rural Systems Oct-12 57.0 9.4% 52.7 9.5%
Rural Systems Nov-12 44.3 7.3% 40.5 7.3%
Rural Systems Dec-12 37.2 6.2% 33.8 6.1%
2012 Totals 605.2 556.0
2013 Electricity Production
Gross % Net %
System Month GWh Year GWh Year
Rural Systems Jan-13 33.8 4.9% 30.2 4.8%
Rural Systems Feb-13 32.8 4.8% 29.6 4.7%
Rural Systems Mar-13 45.3 6.6% 41.6 6.5%
Rural Systems Apr-13 57.7 8.4% 53.6 8.4%
Rural Systems May-13 72.7 10.6% 68.3 10.7%
Rural Systems Jun-13 70.4 10.3% 66.1 10.4%
Rural Systems Jul-13 72.9 10.6% 68.3 10.7%
Rural Systems Aug-13 70.9 10.4% 66.4 10.5%
Rural Systems Sep-13 70.8 10.3% 66.2 10.4%
Rural Systems Oct-13 67.2 9.8% 62.7 9.9%
Rural Systems Nov-13 48.8 7.1% 44.7 7.0%
Rural Systems Dec-13 41.6 6.1% 37.7 5.9%

2013 Totals 685.0 635.3




A
e = ANNUAL REPORT 2015

Table 9 ii
Monthly Electricity Production by System: Rural Systems 2012 to 2015

2014 Electricity Production
Gross % Net %
System Month GWh Year GWh Year
Rural Systems Jan-14 35.9 4.7% 32.3 4.6%
Rural Systems Feb-14 35.0 4.6% 31.5 4.5%
Rural Systems Mar-14 48.2 6.4% 43.4 6.2%
Rural Systems Apr-14 64.5 8.5% 59.3 8.5%
Rural Systems May-14 78.7 10.4% 73.4 10.5%
Rural Systems Jun-14 79.1 10.5% 73.6 10.5%
Rural Systems Jul-14 83.3 11.0% 77.4 11.1%
Rural Systems Aug-14 78.5 10.4% 72.9 10.4%
Rural Systems Sep-14 78.9 10.4% 73.6 10.5%
Rural Systems Oct-14 74.6 9.9% 69.4 9.9%
Rural Systems Nov-14 54.5 7.2% 50.1 7.2%
Rural Systems Dec-14 45.5 6.0% 41.2 5.9%
2014 Totals 756.7 698.1
2015 Electricity Production
Gross % Net %
System Month GWhH Year GWh Year
Rural Systems Jan-15 40.7 4.7% 36.5 4.59
Rural Systems Feb-15 41.9 4.9% 37.7 4.7%
Rural Systems Mar-15 54.1 6.3% 49.5 6.1%
Rural Systems Apr-15 74.5 8.6% 69.8 8.6%
Rural Systems May-15 90.9 10.5% 85.6 10.6%
Rural Systems Jun-15 91.9 10.6% 86.8 10.8%
Rural Systems Jul-15 90.4 10.5% 85.2 10.6%
Rural Systems Aug-15 89.4 10.4% 84.6 10.5%
Rural Systems Sep-15 89.1 10.3% 84.5 10.5%
Rural Systems Oct-15 86.6 10.0% 82.0 10.2%
Rural Systems Nov-15 62.7 7.3% 58.4 7.2%
Rural Systems Dec-15 50.9 5.9% 46.4 5.8%
2015 Totals 863.1 807.0
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Table 9 iii
Monthly Electricity Production by System: Dhofar Power System 2012 to 2015

2012 Electricity Production
Gross % Net %
System Month GWhH Year GWh Year
Dhofar Power System Jan-12 143.4 6.0% 135.9 6.0%
Dhofar Power System Feb-12 144.3 6.1% 132.3 5.8%
Dhofar Power System Mar-12 175.0 7.4% 165.3 7.3%
Dhofar Power System  Apr-12 208.2 8.8% 202.6 8.9%
Dhofar Power System May-12 232.1 9.8% 226.3 10.0%
Dhofar Power System  Jun-12 244.7 10.3% 236.0 10.4%
Dhofar Power System  Jul-12 217.4 9.2% 208.3 9.2%
Dhofar Power System Aug-12 202.9 8.6% 194.5 8.6%
Dhofar Power System  Sep-12 213.7 9.0% 204.7 9.0%
Dhofar Power System  Oct-12 213.9 9.0% 204.5 9.0%
Dhofar Power System  Nov-12 189.4 8.0% 181.2 8.0%
Dhofar Power System Dec-12 186.2 7.9% 177.7 7.8%
2012 Totals 2,371.2 2,269.3
2013 Electricity Production
Gross % Net %
System Month GWh Year GWh Year
Dhofar Power System Jan-13 158.1 6.0% 150.8 6.1%
Dhofar Power System Feb-13 152.4 5.8% 144.9 5.9%
Dhofar Power System Mar-13 200.6 7.6% 192.4 7.8%
Dhofar Power System  Apr-13 236.5 9.0% 225.1 9.1%
Dhofar Power System May-13 281.6 10.7% 264.2 10.7%
Dhofar Power System  Jun-13 260.2 9.9% 244.7 9.9%
Dhofar Power System  Jul-13 214.7 8.2% 198.7 8.1%
Dhofar Power System  Aug-13 230.2 8.7% 212.8 8.6%
Dhofar Power System  Sep-13 239.2 9.1% 224.5 9.1%
Dhofar Power System  Oct-13 246.9 9.4% 229.5 9.3%
Dhofar Power System  Nov-13 219.6 8.3% 203.3 8.2%
Dhofar Power System Dec-13 192.1 7.3% 176.9 7.2%

2013 Totals 2,632.1 2,467.9
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Table 9 iii
Monthly Electricity Production by System: Dhofar Power System 2012 to 2015

2014 Electricity Production
Gross % Net %
System Month GWhH Year GWh Year
Dhofar Power System Jan-14 172.6 6.1% 157.9 6.0%
Dhofar Power System Feb-14 169.2 6.0% 155.6 5.9%
Dhofar Power System Mar-14 221.0 7.8% 205.7 7.8%
Dhofar Power System  Apr-14 254.1 9.0% 238.6 9.0%
Dhofar Power System May-14 291.5 10.3% 274.3 10.3%
Dhofar Power System  Jun-14 291.4 10.3% 273.9 10.3%
Dhofar Power System  Jul-14 241.4 8.5% 225.5 8.5%
Dhofar Power System Aug-14 243.0 8.6% 228.6 8.6%
Dhofar Power System Sep-14 255.1 9.0% 240.1 9.1%
Dhofar Power System  Oct-14 259.9 9.2% 244.2 9.2%
Dhofar Power System Nov-14 231.1 8.1% 216.5 8.2%
Dhofar Power System Dec-14 205.9 7.3% 190.8 7.2%
2014 Totals 2,836.2 2,651.7
2015 Electricity Production
Gross % Net %
System Month GWh Year GWh Year
Dhofar Power System  Jan-15 185.9 6.0% 169.8 5.8%
Dhofar Power System  Feb-15 181.1 2.8% 168.3 3.7%
Dhofar Power System  Mar-15 235.5 7.5% 220.9 7.5%
Dhofar Power System  Apr-15 271.2 8.7% 255.4 8.7%
Dhofar Power System May-15 319.8 10.2% 303.6 10.3%
Dhofar Power System  Jun-15 320.2 10.3% 303.6 10.3%
Dhofar Power System  Jul-15 279.4 8.9% 262.7 8.9%
Dhofar Power System  Aug-15 277.5 8.9% 262.3 8.9%
Dhofar Power System Sep-15 283.1 9.1% 268.8 9.1%
Dhofar Power System  Oct-15 292.7 9.4% 278.0 9.5%
Dhofar Power System  Nov-15 259.2 8.3% 244.1 8.3%
Dhofar Power System  Dec-15 217.1 7.0% 204.1 6.9%
2015 Totals 3,122.6 2,941.7
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Table 101
Quarterly Electricity Production by System: 2012 to 2015
Electricity Production
Gross % Net %
System Period GWh Year GWh Year
MIS Qtr 1-12 3,782.3 17.2% 3,561.3 16.5%
MIS Qtr 2-12 6,311.3 28.6% 6,265.0 29.0%
MIS Qtr 3-12 7,283.9 33.0% 7,204.8 33.3%
MIS Qtr 4-12 4,663.4 21.2% 4,587.9 21.2%
2012 Totals 22,040.8 21,619.1
MIS Qtr 1-13 4,114.5 17.9% 3,906.3 17.3%
MIS Qtr 2-13 6,523.7 28.5% 6,441.7 28.6%
MIS Qtr 3-13 7,491.1 32.7% 7,442.7 33.0%
MIS Qtr 4-13 4,793.7 20.9% 4,767.4 21.1%
2013 Totals 22,923.0 22,558.0
MIS Qtr 1-14 4,182.7 16.4% 3,962.5 15.9%
MIS Qtr 2-14 7,546.5 29.5% 7,498.6 30.0%
MIS Qtr 3-14 8,318.4 32.6% 8,253.8 33.0%
MIS Qtr 4-14 5,496.7 21.5% 5,278.2 21.1%
2014 Totals 25,544.2 24,993.1
MIS Qtr 1-15 4,939.5 17.2% 4,701.6 16.6%
MIS Qtr 2-15 8,447.4 29.4% 8,353.2 29.5%
MIS Qtr 3-15 9,082.2 31.6% 9,164.0 32.3%
MIS Qtr 4-15 6,303.1 21.9% 6,114.8 21.6%

2015 Totals 28,772.3 28,333.6




A

e = ANNUAL REPORT 2015

Table 10 ii

Quarterly Electricity Production by System: 2012 to 2015

Electricity Production
Gross % Net %

System Period GWh Year GWh Year
Rural Systems Qtr 1-12 92.5 15.3% 83.1 14.9%
Rural Systems Qtr 2-12 176.0 29.1% 162.4 29.2%
Rural Systems Qtr 3-12 198.2 32.7% 183.4 33.0%
Rural Systems Qtr 4-12 138.5 22.9% 127.0 22.8%

2012 Totals 605.2 556.0
Rural Systems Qtr 1-13 112.0 16.3% 101.4 16.0%
Rural Systems Qtr 2-13 200.8 29.3% 187.9 29.6%
Rural Systems Qtr 3-13 214.6 31.3% 200.9 31.6%
Rural Systems Qtr 4-13 157.6 23.0% 145.1 22.8%

2013 Totals 685.0 635.3
Rural Systems Qtr 1-14 119.1 15.7% 107.3 15.4%
Rural Systems Qtr 2-14 222.3 29.4% 206.3 29.5%
Rural Systems Qtr 3-14 240.8 31.8% 223.9 32.1%
Rural Systems Qtr 4-14 174.6 23.1% 160.7 23.0%

2014 Totals 756.7 698.1
Rural Systems Qtr 1-15 136.7 15.8% 123.7 15.3%
Rural Systems Qtr 2-15 257.4 29.8% 242.2 30.0%
Rural Systems Qtr 3-15 268.9 31.2% 254.3 31.5%
Rural Systems Qtr 4-15 200.2 23.2% 186.8 23.2%

2015 Totals 863.1 807.0



A

ANNUAL REPORT 2015 e Lt

Table 10 iii

Quarterly Electricity Production by System: 2012 to 2015

Electricity Production
Gross % Net %

System Period GWh Year GWh Year
Dhofar Power System  Qtr 1-12 462.7 19.5% 433.6 19.1%
Dhofar Power System  Qtr 2-12 685.1 28.9% 664.9 29.3%
Dhofar Power System  Qtr 3-12 633.9 26.7% 607.5 26.8%
Dhofar Power System  Qtr 4-12 589.5 24.9% 563.3 24.8%

2012 Totals 2,371.2 2,269.3
Dhofar Power System  Qtr 1-13 511.2 19.4% 488.2 19.8%
Dhofar Power System  Qtr 2-13 778.3 29.6% 734.0 29.7%
Dhofar Power System Qtr 3-13 684.1 26.0% 636.1 25.8%
Dhofar Power System Qtr 4-13 658.6 25.0% 609.6 24.7%

2013 Totals 2,632.1 2,467.9
Dhofar Power System Qtr 1-14 562.8 19.8% 519.2 19.6%
Dhofar Power System  Qtr 2-14 837.0 29.5% 786.7 29.7%
Dhofar Power System Qtr 3-14 739.5 26.1% 694.2 26.2%
Dhofar Power System  Qtr 4-14 696.9 24.6% 651.5 24.6%

2014 Totals 2,836.2 2,651.7
Dhofar Power System  Qtr 1-15 602.5 19.3% 559.0 19.0%
Dhofar Power System  Qtr 2-15 911.1 29.2% 862.7 29.3%
Dhofar Power System  Qtr 3-15 840.1 26.9% 793.8 27.0%
Dhofar Power System  Qtr 4-15 769.0 24.6% 726.2 24.7%

2015 Totals 3,122.6 2,941.7
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Table 12

Technical and non-technical Losses by System: 2008 to 2015

Main Interconnected System

% Changes

GWh 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2014-2015
Sent out Generation: 13,649.0 15,530.2 16,552.4 18,385.5 21,022.7 21,998.3 24,462.9 27,6763  13.1%
'Other' Purchases (note 1): ~ 385.0  188.6 3026 ~ 5648  596.4  559.7 5302 6573  24.0%
GWh entering systems: 14,034.0 15,718.8 16,855.0 18,950.3 21,619.1 22,558.0 24,993.1 28,333.6 13.9%
Supply to Customers: 11,317.4 12,713.6 14,121.6 16,374.5 18,502.2 20,021.0 22,097.7 25,512.6  155%
Total Losses % 19.4% 19.1% 16.2% 13.6% 14.4% 11.2% 11.6% 10.0% -1.6%pp

Rural Systems
% Changes

GWh 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 20142015
Sent out Generation: 325.8 370.2 412.8 470.1 556.0 635.3 698.1 806.7 15.5%
'Other' Purchases (note 1): 335 40.2 48.7 59.9 74.7 94.3 124.7 107.4 -13.9%
GWh entering systems: 359.3 410.5 461.5 530.0 630.7 729.6 822.8 914.1 11.1%
Supply to Customers (note 2): ~ 311.5  368.0 4201 4689  559.4 6509  747.1 816.4 9.3%
Total Losses % 13.3% 10.3% 9.0% 11.5% 11.3% 10.8% 9.2% 10.7% 1.5%pp

Dhofar Power System

% Changes
GWh 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2014-2015
Sent out Generation: 1,467.1 1,688.4 1,819.0 1,907.3 2,269.3 2,467.9 2,651.7 2,941.7 10.9%
'Other' Purchases (note 1): 2.1 45.7 72.4 26.4 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.4 /a
GWh entering systems: 1,469.2 1,734.1 11,8914 1,933.7 2,269.3 2,467.9 2,651.7 2,944.1 11.0%
Supply to Customers: 1,221.2  1,401.5 1,590.8 1,668.9 1,896.6 2,118.8 2,327.3 2,583.4 11.0%
Total Losses % 16.9% 19.2% 15.9% 13.7% 16.4% 14.1% 12.2% 12.3%  0.02%pp

Note 1: MIS "Other" purchases are PWP purchases from MIS connected Exemption Holders, Rental Generation and Interconnection with UAE;
Rural Systems Other purchases are purchases from PDO and Bahwan Aston Field Solar Power LLC; and
Dhofar Other purchases are units purchased by PWP from RAEC for Sale to DPC SAOC and PDO.

Note 2: RAEC Supply includes unallocated 'Other' Supply reported in 2014 SCRC statement.




A

o e ey e ANNUAL REPORT 2015

Water Sector Statistics



ANNUAL REPORT 2015

A

olos - Lypsall g baiiiisn

AUTHORITY FOR ELECTRICITY REGULATION, OMAN

Table 1
Water Production by Zone: 2012 to 2015

2012
Zone

Interconnected & Sharqgiyah Zones
Rural Zones

Dhofar Zone

Total for 2012

2013
Zone

Interconnected & Sharqgiyah Zones
Rural Zones

Dhofar Zone

Total for 2013

2014
Zone

Interconnected & Sharqgiyah Zones
Rural Zones

Dhofar Zone

Total for 2014

2015
Zone

Interconnected & Sharqgiyah Zones
Rural Zones

Dhofar Zone

Total for 2015

142,190,427

165,556,579

211,025,548

249,532,266

Water Production

% Year Net m3 % Year
140,204,702 98.6% 136,467,062  9569%
1,985,725 1.4% 1,870,628 ;.49
138,337,690
Water Production
% Year Net m3 % Year
146,511,925 88.5% 142,563,235  88.3%
2,291,035 1.4% 2,160,352 7 39
16,753,619 10.1% 16,753,619 10,49
161,477,206
Water Production
% Year Net m3 % Year
184,975,345 87.7% 181,973,294  g7.59
2,397,487 1.1% 2,236,582  1.19
23,652,716 11.2% 23,652,716 1749
207,862,592
Water Production
% Year Net m3 % Year
224,926,710 90.1% 221,891,664  99.19%
2,801,593 1.1% 2,627,190 7 79
21,803,963 8.7% 21,803,963 899
246,322,817
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Table 2

Water Production by Zone and Company: 2014 & 2015

2014

A: Interconnected & Sharqgiyah Zones
ACWA Power Barka SAOG

Al Ghubrah SAOC

SMN Barka SAOG

Sohar Power Company SAOG

ISZ sub-total

B: Rural Zones

RAEC SAOC

Rural Zones sub-total

C: Dhofar Zone
SembcorpSalalah SAOC

Dhofar Zone sub-total

Totals for 2014

2015

A: Interconnected & Sharqiyah Zones
ACWA Power Barka SAOG

Al Ghubrah SAOC

Muscat City Desalination Company SAOC
Shargiyah Desalination Company SAOG
SMN Barka SAOG

Sohar Power Company SAOG

ISZ sub-total

% change from 2014

B: Rural Zones

RAEC SAOC

Rural Zones sub-total
% change from 2014

C: Dhofar Zone
SembcorpSalalah SAOC

Dhofar Zone sub-total
% change from 2014

Totals for 2015

Actual change from 2014
% change from 2014

Gross m3

40,242,806
51,234,007
42,794,836
50,703,696

184,975,345

2,397,487
2,397,487

23,652,716
23,652,716

211,025,548

Gross m3

49,920,039
42,935,802
11,609,566
27,519,744
43,229,610
49,711,949

224,926,710

2,801,593

2,801,593
16.9%

21,803,963

21,803,963
-7.8%

249,532,266

38,506,718
18.2%

Water Production

% Oman

19.1%
24.3%
20.3%
24.0%

87.7%

1.1%
1.1%

11.2%
11.2%

100%

Net m3

40,128,046
50,380,244
42,679,362
48,785,642

181,973,294

2,236,582
2,236,582

23,652,716
23,652,716

207,862,592

Water Production

% Oman

20.0%
17.2%
4.7%
11.0%
17.3%
19.9%

90.1%

1.1%
1.1%

8.7%
8.7%

100%

Net m3

49,786,907
42,144,509
11,609,566
27,462,520
43,100,670
47,787,492

221,891,664

2,627,190

2,627,190
17.5%

21,803,963

21,803,963
-7.8%
246,322,817

38,460,225
18.5%

% Oman

19.3%
24.2%
20.5%
23.5%

87.5%

1.1%
1.1%

11.9%

11.4%

100%

% Oman

20.2%
17.1%
4.7%
11.1%
17.5%
19.4%

90.1%

1.1%
1.1%

8.9%
8.9%

100%
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AUTHORITY FOR ELECTRICITY REGULATION, OMAN

Table 3

Water Production by Region:

2014
Region
Al Shargiya

Al Wusta
Dhofar
Musandam
Muscat

North Batinah

South Batinah

Totals for 2014

2015
Region
Al Shargiya
Change from 2014 (%)

Al Wusta
Change from 2014 (%)

Dhofar
Change from 2014 (%)

Musandam
Change from 2014 (%)

Muscat
Change from 2014 (%)

North Batinah
Change from 2014 (%)

South Batinah
Change from 2014 (%)

Totals for 2015
Change from 2014 (%)

2014 and 2015

m3 Gross
1,231,519

1,027,622
23,693,655

97,407
51,234,007
50,703,696
83,037,642

211,025,548

m3 Gross

27,519,744
2134.6%

2,696,472
162.4%

21,838,044
-7.8%

71,040
-27.1%

54,545,368
6.5%

49,711,949
-2.0%

93,149,649
12.2%

249,532,266
18.2%

Water Production

% Oman

0.6%

0.5%

11.2%

0.0%

24.3%

24.0%

39.3%

m23 Net
1,114,454

986,184
23,693,176
95,484
50,380,244
48,785,642
82,807,408

207,862,592

Water Production

% Oman

11.0%

1.1%

8.8%

0.0%

21.9%

19.9%

37.3%

m23 Net

27,462,520
2364.2%

2,523,574
155.9%

21,837,641
-7.8%

69,938
-26.8%

53,754,075
6.7%

47,787,492
-2.0%

92,887,577
12.2%

246,322,817
18.5%

% Oman

0.5%

0.5%

11.4%

0.0%

24.2%

23.5%

39.8%

% Oman

11.1%

1.0%

8.9%

0.0%

21.8%

19.4%

37.7%

101
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Table 4
Water Production by Region and Company: 2014 and 2015
2014 Water Production
Region Company Gross m3 % Oman Net m3 % Oman
Al Sharaiva RAEC SAOC 1,231,519 0.6% 1,114,454 0.5%
Al Wusta RAEC SAOC 1,027,622 0.5% 986,184 0.5%
Dhofar RAEC SAOC 40,939 0.0% 40,460 0.0%
SembcorpSalalah SAOC 23,652,716 11.2% 23,652,716 11.4%
Musandam RAEC SAOC 97,407 0.0% 95,484 0.0%
Muscat Al Ghubrah SAOC 51,234,007 24.3% 50,380,244 24.2%
North Batinah Sohar Power Company SAOG 50,703,696 24.0% 48,785,642 23.5%
South Batinah ACWA Power Barka SAOG 40,242,806 19.1% 40,128,046 19.3%
SMN Barka SAOG 42,794,836 20.3% 42,679,362 20.5%
Sultanate Totals 2014 211,025,548 207,862,592
2015 Water Production
Region Company Gross m3 % Oman Net m3 % Oman
Al Sharaiva RAEC SAOC
Sharaivah Desalination Compa 27,519,744 11.0% 27,462,520 11.1%
Al Wusta RAEC SAOC 2,696,472 1.1% 2,523,574 1.0%
Dhofar RAEC SAOC 34,081 0.0% 33,678 0.0%
SembcorpSalalah SAOC 21,803,963 8.7% 21,803,963 8.9%
Musandam RAEC SAOC 71,040 0.0% 69,938 0.0%
Muscat Al Ghubrah SAOC 42,935,802 17.2% 42,144,509 17.1%
Muscat Citv Desalination Comp 11,609,566 4.7% 11,609,566 4.7%
North Batinah Sohar Power Company SAOG 49,711,949 19.9% 47,787,492 19.4%
South Batinah ACWA Power Barka SAOG 49,920,039 20.0% 49,786,907 20.2%
SMN Barka SAOG 43,229,610 17.3% 43,100,670 17.5%
Sultanate Totals 2015 249,532,266 246,322,817
Change from 2014 (%) 18.2% 18.5%
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Table5i
Monthly Water Production by Zone: Interconnected & Sharqiyah Zone 2012 to 2015
2012 o sWater Prodt;;tion et o
Zone Month 000 m3 Year '000 m3 Year
Interconnected & Sharqiyah Zone Jan-12 9,447.4 6.7% 9,261.4 6.8%
Interconnected & Sharqgiyah Zone Feb-12 10,102.9 7.2% 9,864.0 7.2%
Interconnected & Sharqgiyah Zone Mar-12 11,566.9 8.3% 11,330.0 8.3%
Interconnected & Sharqiyah Zone Apr-12 11,665.0 8.3% 11,362.0 8.3%
Interconnected & Shargiyah Zone May-12 12,515.5 8.9% 12,065.2 8.8%
Interconnected & Sharqiyah Zone Jun-12 12,252.1 8.7% 11,799.5 8.6%
Interconnected & Sharqgiyah Zone Jul-12 12,647.2 9.0% 12,317.8 9.0%
Interconnected & Sharqiyah Zone Aug-12 12,632.7 9.0% 12,339.6 9.0%
Interconnected & Shargiyah Zone Seﬁ-lz 12,386.7 8.8% 12,125.7 8.9%
Interconnected & Shargiyah Zone Oét-12 12,114.0 8.6% 11,677.5 8.6%
Interconnected & Shargiyah Zone Nov-12 11,742.8 8.4% 11,440.5 8.4%
Interconnected & Sharqiyah Zone Dec-12 11,131.6 7.9% 10,883.9 8.0%
2012 Totals 140,204.7 136,467.1
2013 o sWater Pradtz/jtion et o
Zone Month 000 m3 Year '000 m3 Year
Interconnected & Shargiyah Zone Jan-13 11,311.7 7.7% 11,020.8 7.7%
Interconnected & Shargiyah Zone Feb-13 10,238.9 7.0% 9,956.4 7.0%
Interconnected & Sharqiyah Zone Mar-13 12,293.1 8.4% 11,962.9 8.4%
Interconnected & Shargiyah Zone Apr-13 12,093.5 8.3% 11,805.5 8.3%
Interconnected & Shargiyah Zone May-13 12,859.2 8.8% 12,532.1 8.8%
Interconnected & Shargiyah Zone Juﬁ_13 12,963.4 8.8% 12,595.3 8.8%
Interconnected & Shargiyah Zone Jul-13 13,071.5 8.9% 12,745.7 8.9%
Interconnected & Sharqiyah Zone Aug-13 13,065.1 8.9% 12,698.9 8.9%
Interconnected & Shargiyah Zone Sep-13 12,660.8 8.6% 12,310.0 8.6%
Interconnected & Shargiyah Zone  Oct-13 12,490.1 8.5% 12,056.2  8.5%
Interconnected & Shargiyah Zone Nov-13 11,533.5 7.9% 11,2111 7.9%
Interconnected & Sharqiyah Zone Dec-13 11,931.1 8.1% 11,668.4 8.2%
2013 Totals 146,511.9 142,563.2
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Table5i

Monthly Water Production by Zone: Interconnected & Sharqiyah Zone 2012 to 2015

2014 o sWater Prodt;tion et 9
Zone Month 000 m3 Year '000 m3 Year
Interconnected & Shargiyah Zone Jan-14 13,708.1 7.4% 13,402.7 7.4%
Interconnected & Shargiyah Zone Feb-14 12,328.1 6.7% 12,039.1 6.6%
Interconnected & Sharqiyah Zone Mar-14 14,216.6 7.7% 13,991.2 7.7%
Interconnected & Sharqiyah Zone Apr-14 14,681.7 7.9% 14,457.9 7.9%
Interconnected & Shargiyah Zone May-14 15,638.1 8.5% 15,374.5 8.4%
Interconnected & Shargiyah Zone Jun-14 16,661.8 9.0% 16,448.6 9.0%
Interconnected & Sharqgiyah Zone Jul-14 16,878.2 9.1% 16,591.7 9.1%
Interconnected & Sharqiyah Zone Aug-14 16,615.8 9.0% 16,354.3 9.0%
Interconnected & Shargiyah Zone Sep-14 16,429.8 8.9% 16,189.0 8.9%
Interconnected & Shargiyah Zone Oct-14 16,173.2 8.7% 15,963.9 8.8%
Interconnected & Sharqiyah Zone Nov-14 15,782.8 8.5% 15,567.9 8.6%
Interconnected & Sharqiyah Zone Dec-14 15,861.1 8.6% 15,592.5 8.6%
2014 Totals 184,975.3 181,973.3

2015 o sWater Produa/:tion et o
Zone Month 000 m3 Year '000 m3 Year
Interconnected & Shargiyah Zone Jan-15 17,645.6 7.8% 17,347.6 7.8%
Interconnected & Shargiyah Zone Feb-15 16,303.9 7.2% 16,105.1 7.3%
Interconnected & Sharqgiyah Zone Mar-15 17,698.3 7.9% 17,459.1 7.9%
Interconnected & Sharqiyah Zone Apr-15 18,244.1 8.1% 17,944.1 8.1%
Interconnected & Shargiyah Zone May-15 17,951.9 8.0% 17,676.5 8.0%
Interconnected & Shargiyah Zone Juﬁ_15 17,833.6 7.9% 17,550.8 7.9%
Interconnected & Shargiyah Zone Jul-15 19,204.2 8.5% 18,928.8 8.5%
Interconnected & Sharqiyah Zone Aug-15 19,404.1 8.6% 19,169.8 8.6%
Interconnected & Shargiyah Zone Sep-15 20,379.1 9.1% 20,138.5 9.1%
Interconnected & Shargiyah Zone Oét-15 19,494.0 8.7% 19,373.4 8.7%
Interconnected & Sharqiyah Zone Nov-15 19,647.8 8.7% 19,322.7 8.7%
Interconnected & Shargiyah Zone Dec-15 21,120.3 9.4% 20,875.4 9.4%
2015 Totals 224,926.7 221,891.7
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Table 5 ii
Monthly Water Production by Zone: Rural Zone 2012 to 2015

2012 o sWater Prodt;;tlon et .
Zone Month 000 m3 Year '000 m3 Year
Rural Zone Jan-12 155.0 7.8% 143.3 7.7%
Rural Zone Feb-12 141.4 7.1% 127.0 6.8%
Rural Zone Mar-12 155.0 7.8% 142.0 7.6%
Rural Zone Apr-12 149.3 7.5% 138.8 7.4%
Rural Zone May-12 145.8 7.3% 144.0 7.7%
Rural Zone Jun-12 150.5 7.6% 144.4 7.7%
Rural Zone Jul-12 170.5 8.6% 160.9 8.6%
Rural Zone Aug-12 186.1 9.4% 175.7 9.4%
Rural Zone Sep-12 179.1 9.0% 168.6 9.0%
Rural Zone Oct-12 182.3 9.2% 172.9 9.2%
Rural Zone Nov-12 186.2 9.4% 176.9 9.5%
Rural Zone Dec-12 184.5 9.3% 176.1 9.4%
2012 Totals 1,985.7 1,870.6
2013 o sWater Pradtz/jtlon et 9
Zone Month '000 m3 Year '000m3  Year
Rural Zone Jan-13 193.3 8.4% 177.3 8.2%
Rural Zone Feb-13 171.6 7.5% 167.3 7.7%
Rural Zone Mar-13 195.1 8.5% 182.7 8.5%
Rural Zone Apr-13 189.2 8.3% 179.3 8.3%
Rural Zone May-13 201.2 8.8% 189.6 8.8%
Rural Zone Jun-13 193.3 8.4% 181.8 8.4%
Rural Zone Jul-13 188.8 8.2% 181.0 8.4%
Rural Zone Aug-13 184.4 8.0% 172.2 8.0%
Rural Zone Sep-13 191.2 8.3% 179.0 8.3%
Rural Zone Oct-13 189.3 8.3% 180.6 8.4%
Rural Zone Nov-13 193.6 8.5% 180.2 8.3%
Rural Zone Dec-13 200.1 8.7% 189.2 8.8%
2013 Totals 2,291.0 2,160.4
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Table 5 ii
Monthly Water Production by Zone: Rural Zone 2012 to 2015

2014 o sWater Prodt;tion et .
Zone Month 000 m3 Year '000 m3 Year
Rural Zone Jan-14 193.6 8.1% 178.6 8.0%
Rural Zone Feb-14 167.2 7.0% 158.5 7.1%
Rural Zone Mar-14 198.9 8.3% 182.1 8.1%
Rural Zone Apr-14 205.0 8.5% 183.8 8.2%
Rural Zone May-14 226.9 9.5% 202.9 9.1%
Rural Zone Jun-14 217.2 9.1% 197.9 8.8%
Rural Zone Jul-14 205.4 8.6% 187.1 8.4%
Rural Zone Aug-14 202.6 8.4% 184.7 8.3%
Rural Zone Sep-14 200.8 8.9% 197.2 8.8%
Rural Zone Oct-14 201.7 8.4% 195.7 8.8%
Rural Zone Nov-14 185.8 7.7% 182.3 8.1%
Rural Zone Dec-14 192.5 8.0% 185.7 8.3%
2014 Totals 2,397.5 2,236.6
2015 o sWater Produa/:tion et .
Zone Month '000 m3 Year '000 m3 Year
Rural Zone Jan-15 197.4 7.0% 187.9 7.2%
Rural Zone Feb-15 190.5 6.8% 186.1 71%
Rural Zone Mar-15 214.3 7.6% 191.7 7.3%
Rural Zone Apr-15 231.1 8.2% 210.5 8.0%
Rural Zone May-15 244.3 8.7% 234.1 8.9%
Rural Zone Jun-15 236.9 8.5% 221.5 8.4%
Rural Zone Jul-15 228.9 8.2% 218.5 8.3%
Rural Zone Aug-15 223.7 8.0% 210.0 8.0%
Rural Zone Sep-15 245.1 8.7% 235.8 9.0%
Rural Zone Oct-15 252.2 9.0% 232.5 8.8%
Rural Zone Nov-15 264.4 9.4% 239.9 9.1%
Rural Zone Dec-15 272.7 9.7% 258.6 9.8%
2015 Totals 2,801.6 2,627.2
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Table 5 iii
Monthly Water Production by Zone: Dhofar Zone 2012 to 2015

2012 o sWater Prodt;;tion et .
Zone Month 000 m3 Year '000 m3 Year
Dhofar Zone Jan-12
Dhofar Zone Feb-12
Dhofar Zone Mar-12
Dhofar Zone Apr-12
Dhofar Zone May-12
Dhofar Zone Jun-12
Dhofar Zone Jul-12
Dhofar Zone Aug-12
Dhofar Zone Sep-12
Dhofar Zone Oct-12
Dhofar Zone Nov-12
Dhofar Zone Dec-12
2012 Totals
2013 o sWater Pradtz/jtion et 9
Zone Month '000 m3 Year '000m3  Year
Dhofar Zone Jan-13 106.0 0.6% 106.0 0.6%
Dhofar Zone Feb-13 212.6 1.3% 212.6 1.3%
Dhofar Zone Mar-13 246.7 1.5% 246.7 1.5%
Dhofar Zone Apr-13 920.4 5.5% 920.4 5.5%
Dhofar Zone May-13 1,978.3 11.8% 1,978.3 11.8%
Dhofar Zone Juﬁ-13 1,529.2 9.1% 1,529.2 9.1%
Dhofar Zone Jul-13 1,744.4 10.4% 1,744.4 10.4%
Dhofar Zone Aug-13 2,056.6 12.3% 2,056.6 12.3%
Dhofar Zone Sep-13 2,009.8 12.0% 2,009.8 12.0%
Dhofar Zone Oct-13 2,005.6 12.0% 2,005.6 12.0%
Dhofar Zone Nov-13 1,968.8 11.8% 1,968.8 11.8%
Dhofar Zone Dec-13 1,975.5 11.8% 1,975.5 11.8%
2013 Totals 16,753.6 16,753.6
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Table 5 iii
Monthly Water Production by Zone: Dhofar Zone 2012 to 2015

2014 o sWater Prodt;tion et .
Zone Month 000 m3 Year '000 m3 Year
Dhofar Zone Jan-14 2,020.0 8.5% 2,020.0 8.5%
Dhofar Zone Feb-14 1,848.7 7.8% 1,848.7 7.8%
Dhofar Zone Mar-14 2,104.4 8.9% 2,104.4 8.9%
Dhofar Zone Apr-14 1,894.3 8.0% 1,894.3 8.0%
Dhofar Zone May-14 2,120.0 9.0% 2,120.0 9.0%
Dhofar Zone Jun-14 2,003.5 8.5% 2,003.5 8.5%
Dhofar Zone Jul-14 1,980.7 8.4% 1,980.7 8.4%
Dhofar Zone Aug-14 1,888.3 8.0% 1,888.3 8.0%
Dhofar Zone Sep-14 1,900.8 8.0% 1,900.8 8.0%
Dhofar Zone Oct-14 2,047.9 8.7% 2,047.9 8.7%
Dhofar Zone Nov-14 1,838.2 7.8% 1,838.2 7.8%
Dhofar Zone Dec-14 2,005.8 8.5% 2,005.8 8.5%
2014 Totals 23,652.7 23,652.7
2015 o sWater Produa/:tion et .
Zone Month 1000 m3 Year '000m3  Year
Dhofar Zone Jan-15 1,951.9 9.0% 1,951.9 9.0%
Dhofar Zone Feb-15 1,682.7 7.7% 1,682.7 7.7%
Dhofar Zone Mar-15 1,733.5 8.0% 1,733.5 8.0%
Dhofar Zone Apr-15 1,591.3 7.3% 1,591.3 7.3%
Dhofar Zone May-15 1,699.9 7.8% 1,699.9 7.8%
Dhofar Zone Juﬁ-15 1,826.6 8.4% 1,826.6 8.4%
Dhofar Zone Jul-15 1,908.1 8.8% 1,908.1 8.8%
Dhofar Zone Aug-15 2,018.7 9.3% 2,018.7 9.3%
Dhofar Zone Sep-15 1,832.1 8.4% 1,832.1 8.4%
Dhofar Zone Oét-15 1,900.8 8.7% 1,900.8 8.7%
Dhofar Zone Nov-15 1,774.3 8.1% 1,774.3 8.1%
Dhofar Zone Dec-15 1,884.1 8.6% 1,884.1 8.6%
2015 Totals 21,804.0 21,804.0
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Table 6 i
Quarterly Water Production by Zone: 2012 to 2015
Water Production
Gross % Net %
Zone Period ‘000 m3 Year ‘000 m3 Year
Interconnected & Shargiyah Zones  otr 1-12 31,117.2 22.2% 30,455.3 22.3%
Interconnected & Shargiyah Zones  Qtr 2-12 36,432.6 26.0% 35,226.7 25.8%
Interconnected & Sharqgiyah Zones  tr 3-12 37,666.5 26.9% 36,783.1 27.0%
Interconnected & Shargiyah Zones  (tr 4-12 34,988.4 25.0% 34,001.9 24.9%
2012 Totals 140,204.7 136,467.1
Interconnected & Shargiyah Zones  (otr 1-13 33,843.7 23.1% 32,940.0 23.1%
Interconnected & Shargiyah Zones  otr 2-13 37,916.1 25.9% 36,932.9 25.9%
Interconnected & Shargiyah Zones Qg 3-13 38,797.4 26.5% 37,754.5 26.5%
Interconnected & Shargiyah Zones  tr 4-13 35,954.7 24.5% 34,935.8 24.5%
2013 Totals 146,511.9 142,563.2
Interconnected & Shargiyah Zones  (otr 1-14 40,252.8 21.8% 39,432.9 21.7%
Interconnected & Shargiyah Zones  otr 2-14 46,981.6 25.4% 46,281.1 25.4%
Interconnected & Shargiyah Zones (ot 3-14 49,923.9 27.0% 49,135.0 27.0%
Interconnected & Shargiyah Zones  (tr 4-14 47,817.1 25.9% 47,124.3 25.9%
2014 Totals 184,975.3 181,973.3
Interconnected & Shargiyah Zones (ot 1-15 51,647.7 23.0% 50,911.8 22.9%
Interconnected & Shargiyah Zones Qg 2-15 54,029.6 24.0% 53,171.3 24.0%
Interconnected & Shargiyah Zones Qg 3-15 58,987.4 26.2% 58,237.1 26.2%
Interconnected & Shargiyah Zones (ot 4-15 60,262.0 26.8% 59,571.5 26.8%
2015 Totals 224,926.7 221,891.7
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Table 6 ii

Quarterly Water Production by Zone: 2012 to 2015

Water Production
Gross % Net %

Zone Period '000 m3 year ~ '000m3 Year
Rural Zones Otr 1-12 451.4 22.7% 412.3 22.0%
Rural Zones Otr 2-12 445.7 22.9% 427.3 22.8%
Rural Zones Otr 3-12 535.7 27.0% 505.1 27.0%
Rural Zones Otr 4-12 553.0 27.8% 525.9 28.1%

2012 Totals 1,985.7 1,870.6
Rural Zones Otr 1-13 560.0 24.4% 527.3 24.4%
Rural Zones Otr 2-13 583.7 25.5% 550.7 25.5%
Rural Zones Otr 3-13 564.3 24.6% 532.2 24.6%
Rural Zones Otr 4-13 583.1 25.4% 550.1 25.5%

2013 Totals 2,291.0 2,160.4
Rural Zones Otr 1-14 559.6 23.3% 519.2 23.2%
Rural Zones Otr 2-14 649.1 27.1% 584.6 26.1%
Rural Zones Otr 3-14 608.8 25.4% 569.0 25.4%
Rural Zones Otr 4-14 580.0 24.2% 563.7 25.2%

2014 Totals 2,397.5 2,236.6
Rural Zones Otr 1-15 602.2 21.5% 565.7 21.5%
Rural Zones Otr 2-15 712.4 25.4% 666.1 25.4%
Rural Zones Otr 3-15 697.7 24.9% 664.3 25.3%
Rural Zones Otr 4-15 789.3 28.2% 731.1 27.8%

2015 Totals 2,801.6 2,627.2
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Table 6 iii

Quarterly Water Production by Zone: 2012 to 2015

Water Production
Gross % Net %
Zone Period '000 m3 Year '000 m3 Year
Dhofar Zone Otr 1-12
Dhofar Zone Otr 2-12
Dhofar Zone Otr 3-12
Dhofar Zone Otr 4-12
2012 Totals
Dhofar Zone Otr 1-13 565.3 3.4% 565.3 3.4%
Dhofar Zone Otr 2-13 4,427.8 26.4% 4,427.8 26.4%
Dhofar Zone Otr 3-13 5,810.7 34.7% 5,810.7 34.7%
Dhofar Zone Qtr 4-13 5,949.8 35.5% 5,949.8 35.5%
2013 Totals 16,753.6 16,753.6
Dhofar Zone Otr 1-14 5,973.2 25.3% 5,973.2 25.3%
Dhofar Zone Otr 2-14 6,017.8 25.4% 6,017.8 25.4%
Dhofar Zone Otr 3-14 5,769.8 24.4% 5,769.8 24.4%
Dhofar Zone Otr 4-14 5,891.9 24.9% 5,891.9 24.9%
2014 Totals 23,652.7 23,652.7
Dhofar Zone Otr 1-15 5,368.1 24.6% 5,368.1 24.6%
Dhofar Zone Otr 2-15 5,117.8 23.5% 5,117.8 23.5%
Dhofar Zone Otr 3-15 5,758.9 26.4% 5,758.9 26.4%
Dhofar Zone Otr 4-15 5,559.1 25.5% 5,559.1 25.5%

2015 Totals 21,804.0 21,804.0
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2015 MIS Outturn Subsidy

Maximum Allowed Supply Revenue
Rial Omani

PC (Energy cost)

TUoS (Transmission cost)

DUoS (Distribution cost)

SB (Supply cost)

LF (Licence fee)

KS (Correction factor)

Maximum Allowed Supply Revenue

Actual Regulated Supply Revenue
Rial Omani

Approved Subsidy

Permitted Tariff (& other) Revenue
Actual Regulated Supply Revenue
Outturn Subsidy Requirement

Subsidy per kWh
(bz/kWh)

Economic Cost
Subsidy (Outturn)
Customer Revenue

Source: Company SCRCs, Authority calculations

Key:

PC means the cost of bulk supply purchaces from PWP

Annex D:
Electricity Subsidy Calculations

2015 outturn 2014 Outturn
194,030,010 145,102,960 152,902,306 492,035,276 346,704,450 41.92%
29,196,559 20,134,716 23,802,178 73,133,453 67,955,339 7.62%
53,443,904 39,919,828 65,920,219 159,283,951 131,431,583 21.19%
10,526,749 7,588,942 11,624,897 29,740,589 26,581,185 11.89%
56,809 56,794 56,794 170,397 211,494 -19.43%
8,588,692 501,500 2,081,712 11,171,903 12,845,820 13.03%
278,665,338 212,301,741 252,224,683 743,191,761 560,038,231 32.70%
MEDC MJEC MZEC Total
105,010,215 97,825,120 137,623,622 340,458,957 233,962,210 46%
170,566,616 117,022,261 111,425,839 399,014,716 345,895,744 15%
275,576,831 214,847,381 249,049,461 739,473,673 569,857,954 30%
108,098,722 95,279,479 140,798,843 344,177,045 214,142,487 61%
27.6 27.0 334 29.1 253 15%
10.7 121 18.6 135 9.7 39%
16.9 14.9 14.8 15.6 155 1%

TUoS means Transmission Use of System costs
DUoS means Distribution Use of System costs

SB means Supply Business costs
LF means the Supply Business Licence Fees
KS means the Supply Business Correction Factor

Allin relevant year t

2015 MIS Revenue and Subsidy

Outturn

Subsidy
Customer 26%
Revenue
54%
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AUTHORITY FOR ELECTRICITY REGULATION, OMAN

2016 MIS Subsidy Forecast

Maximum Allowed Supply Revenue 2016 Forecast 2015 outturn

Rial Omani
PC (Energy cost) 217,158,014 174,443,029 162,749,135 554,350,178 492,035,276 12.66%

TUoS (Transmission cost) 28,075,030 19,710,733 24,079,038 71,864,801 73,133,453 -1.73%

DUoS (Distribution cost) 49,996,222 42,520,956 67,605,249 160,122,427 159,283,951 0.53%

SB (Supply cost) 11,068,598 7,968,735 12,233,440 31,270,774 29,740,589 5.15%

LF (Licence fee) 59,241 59,241 59,241 177,724 170,397 4.30%

KS (Correction factor) (3,116,712) 1,556,728 (3,204,216) (4,764,200) 11,171,903 -142.64%
Maximum Allowed Supply Revenue 309,473,818 243,145,967 269,930,320 822,550,105 743,191,761 10.68%

Actual Regulated Supply Revenues

Rial Omani
Approved Subsidy 123,091,130 112,126,912 149,545,856 384,763,899 340,458,957 13%
Permitted Tariff (& other) Revenue 186,382,688 131,019,055 120,384,464 437,786,206 399,014,716 10%
Actual Regulated Supply R 309,473,818 243,145,967 269,930,320 822,550,105 739,473,673 11%

Subsidy per kWh

(b2/kWh)
Economic Cost 28.4 27.6 331 29.5 29.1 1%
Subsidy (Estimate) 11.3 12.7 18.3 13.8 13.5 2%
Customer Revenue 171 14.9 14.8 15.7 15.6 1%

Source: Company returns, Authority estimates

2016 MIS Revenue & Subsidy

Forecast

Key:

PC means the cost of bulk supply purchaces from PWP
TUoS means Transmission Use of System costs

R . Customer

DUoS means Dlstrlbut|or? Use of System costs Revenue Subsidy
SB means Supply Business costs 53% 47%
LF means the Supply Business Licence Fees

KS means the Supply Business Correction Factor
All'in relevant year t
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2015 RAEC Subsidy Outturn

Maximum Allowed Electricity Revenue 2015 outturn 2014 outturn

Rial Omani
MAGR (Generation cost) 57,235,967

MANR (Networks cost) 18,469,459

MASR (Supply cost) 5,259,808

LF (Licence fee) 302,899

K (Correction factor) 173,382

Maximum Allowed Electricity Revenue 81,094,750 56,836,636 42.7%

Actual Regulated Electricity Revenue

Rial Omani

Approved Subsidy 66,452,279 44,646,000 49%
Permitted Tariff (& other) Revenue 13,685,566 12,362,210 11%
Actual Regulated Electricity Revenue 80,137,845 57,008,210 41%
Outturn Subsidy Requirement 67,409,184 44,474,426 52%

Subsidy per kWh

(bz/kWh)

Economic Cost 99.3 80.8 23%
Subsidy (Outturn) 82.6 63.2 31%
Customer Revenue 16.8 17.6 -5%
Note: RAEC Licence (MAR formula) was modified in 2015
Source: Company SCRCs, Authority calculations 20 15 RAEC Reven ue & Su bSidy
Outturn
Customer
Revenue _

Key:

MAGR means the Maximum Allowed Generation Revenue
MANR means the Maximum Allowed Networks Revenue
MASR means the Maximum Allowed Supply Revenue

LF means the Licence Fees

K means the Electricity Business Correction Factor

17%

!

All in relevant year t

Subsidy
83%
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2016 RAEC Subsidy Forecast

Maximum Allowed Electricity Revenue 2016 Forecast 2015 outturn

Rial Omani
MAGR (Generation cost) 62,495,381 57,235,967 9.2%

MANR (Networks cost) 19,051,618 18,469,459 3.2%

MASR (Supply cost) 5,549,780 5,259,808 5.5%

LF (Licence fee) 278,783 302,899 -8.0%

K (Correction factor) (965,641) 173,382 -656.9%
Maximum Allowed Electricity Revenue 88,341,203 81,094,750 8.9%

Actual Regulated Electricity Revenue

Rial Omani
Approved Subsidy 72,641,793 66,452,279 9%
Permitted Tariff (& other) Revenue 15,699,410 13,685,566 15%
Actual Regulated Electricity Revenue 88,341,203 80,137,845 10%

Subsidy per kWh

(b2/kWh)

Economic Cost 94.1 99.3 -5%
Subsidy (Estimate) 77.4 82.6 -6%
Customer Revenue 16.7 16.8 0%
Source: Company returns, Authority estimates
2016 RAEC Revenue & Subsidy
Forecast
Customer
Key: Revenue _ ]

18%
£
/

MAGR means the Maximum Allowed Generation Revenue
MANR means the Maximum Allowed Networks Revenue
MASR means the Maximum Allowed Supply Revenue

LF means the Licence Fees

K means the Electricity Business Correction Factor

Allin relevant year t

Subsidy
82%
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2015 DPC Outturn Subsidy

Maximum Allowed Supply Revenue 2015 outturn 2014 outturn

Rial Omani
PC (Energy cost) 52,941,970 37,665,530 40.6%

TUoS (Transmission cost) 8,593,082 8,124,178 5.8%

DUoS (Distribution cost) 16,772,378 16,221,075 3.4%

SB (Supply cost) 3,959,059 3,259,080 21.5%

LF (Licence fee) 56,794 70,498 -19.4%

KS (Correction factor) (1,444,399) 0

Maximum Allowed Supply Revenue 83,767,682 65,340,361 28.2%

Actual Regulated Supply Revenue

Rial Omani
Approved Subsidy 41,258,489 27,040,977 53%
Permitted Tariff (& other) Revenue 40,932,693 36,870,051 1%

Actual Regulated Supply Revenue 82,191,182 63,911,028 29%

Outturn Subsidy Requirement 42,834,989 28,470,310 50%

Subsidy per kWh

(bz/kWh)
Economic Cost 324 27.8 17%

Subsidy (Estimate) 16.6 1.5 44%
Customer Revenue 15.8 15.7 1%

Source: Company returns, Authority estimates .

pany Y 2015 DPC Revenue & Subsidy
Key: Outturn

PC means the cost of bulk supply purchaces from PWP
TUoS means Transmission Use of System costs

DUoS means Distribution Use of System costs ,"'

. Subsid
SB means Supply Business costs Customer| u5150'4 Y
LF means the Supply Business Licence Fees ReX;;”e )
KS means the Supply Business Correction Factor

All in relevant year t
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2015 Outturn & 2016 Forecast DPC Subsidy

Maximum Allowed Supply Revenue 2016 Forecast 2015 outturn

Rial Omani
PC (Energy cost) 58,460,000 52,941,970 10.4%

TUoS (Transmission cost) 6,060,719 8,593,082 -29.5%

DUoS (Distribution cost) 16,377,377 16,772,378 2.4%

SB (Supply cost) 4,229,223 3,959,059 6.8%

LF (Licence fee) 59,241 56,794 4.3%

KS (Correction factor) (1,590,896) (1,444,399) 10.1%
Maximum Allowed Supply Revenue 86,777,457 83,767,682 3.6%

Actual Regulated Supply Revenue

Rial Omani

Approved Subsidy 38,219,973 41,258,489 7%
Permitted Tariff (& other) Revenue 48,557,485 40,932,693 19%
Actual Regulated Supply Revenue 86,777,457 82,191,182 6%

Subsidy per kWh

(b2/kWh)

Economic Cost 29.7 324 -8%
Subsidy (Estimate) 13.1 16.6 -21%
Customer Revenue 16.6 15.8 5%
Source: Company returns, Authority estimates 2016 DPC R .
evenue & Subsidy
Key: Forecast

PC means the cost of bulk supply purchaces from PWP
TUoS means Transmission Use of System costs

DUoS means Distribution Use of System costs 4 Sizs;dy
SB means Supply Business costs l' ’
LF means the Supply Business Licence Fees {

KS means the Supply Business Correction Factor CUStomef\

Revenue

All'in relevant year t 56%
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Annex E:
Economic Electricity Subsidy 2015
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2015 MIS Electricity Subsidy (Gas Cost Sensitivities)

H Subsidy Increase at Higher Gas Cost - RO million

H Subsidy at $1.5 Gas Price - RO million

561.9
~esssasssnc. 449.5
337.1
- 224.8
- 1124 |
231.8 231.8
Gas cost $1.5 mmBTu $3 mmBTu $4.5 mmBTu $6 mmBTu $7.5 mmBTu $9 mmBTu
Subsidy 231.8 mRO 344.2 mRO 456.6 mRO 568.9 mRO 681.3 mRO 793.7 mRO
Subsidy 9.1 Bz/kWh 13.5 Bz/kWh 17.9 Bz/kWh 22.3 Bz/kWh 26.7 Bz/kWh 31.1 Bz/kWh

2015 DPC Electricity Subsidy (Gas Cost Sensitivities)

L Subsidy Increase at Higher Gas Cost - RO million

M Subsidy at $1.5 Gas Price - RO million

71.6
57.2
42.9
28.6
14.3

28.5 28.5
Gas cost $1.5 mmBTu $3 mmBTu $4.5 mmBTu $6 mmBTu $7.5 mmBTu $9 mmBTu
Subsidy 28.5 mRO 42.8 mRO 57.1 mRO 71.5 mRO 85.8 mRO 100.1 mRO
Subsidv 11 Bz/kWh 16.6 Bz/kWh 22.1 Bz/kWh 27.7 Bz/kWh 33.2 Bz/kWh 38.7 Bz/kWh

2015 RAEC Electricity Subsidy (Diesel Cost Sensitivities)

K Subsidy Increase at Higher Diesel Cost - RO million

M Subsidy at Financial Diesel Cost - RO million

15.4

67.4
Qil price 58 US$ bbl 70 US$ bbl 85 US$ bbl 90 US$ bbl 102 US$ bbl 106 US$ bbl
Diesel cost 140 Bz/Itr 167 Bz/Itr 203 Bz/ltr 215 Bz/lItr 244 Bz/Itr 252 Bz/ltr
Subsidy 67.4 mRO 74.1 mRO 82.8 mRO 85.7 mRO 92.6 mRO 94.6 mRO

Subsidy 82.6 Bz/kWh 90.8 Bz/kWh 101.4 Bz/kWh ~ 104.9 Bz/kWh  113.4 Bz/kWh  115.9 Bz/kWh
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Annex F:
2016 Forward Work Programme
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2016 Work Priorities

The 2016 Forward Work Programme includes a number of *high priority’ areas of work:

GP1

GP2

GP3

GP4

GP5

Customer Service Compliance Audit

The Authority intends to undertake a formal audit of all supply licensees to ascertain their
compliance with statutory obligations towards their customers. The audit will aim fo identify
areas for improvement within each licensee and provide benchmarks that will form a basis
for continued improvement. There are a number of initiatives undertaken by licensees with
regards to improving customer related services and the audit will assess the effectiveness of
these initiatives.

Water Sector Restructuring

Pursuant to a decision by the Government to restructure the water sector in Oman, the
Authority will actively work to ensure the design of the legal and regulatory framework for the
restructured water sector meets the objectives set forth by the Government.

Permitted Tariff Analysis

The Authority will undertake a study on electricity tariffs in Oman and prepare comprehensive
tariff reform proposals that will be presented to the Government during 2016. The study will
consider modifications to the current structure of permitted tariffs and assess the impact on the
allocation of Subsidy to various customer categories.

Implementation of Energy Efficiency Measures

The Authority will take the lead in implementing energy efficiency measures across various
aspects of the electricity sector. The measures will include demand-side management,
coordinating on revised building codes, infroduction of appliance labeling and other energy
efficiency aspects that the Authority hopes will lead to promoting a more efficient use of
electricity.

Renewable Energy

Further to work undertaken by the Authority in 2015 on finalising and approving Agency
Contracts to facilitate the purchase of electricity from small scale renewable facilities, the
Authority will finalise the governance structure that it hopes will provide customers with the
framework for deployment of small-scale renewable facilities connected at the distribution
level in the Sultanate in 2016.
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Other areas of work planned for 2016

GPé6

GP7

GP8

GP9

GP10

GP11

In addition to the ‘high priority’ areas of work outlined above, the Authority expects to progress
other areas of work during 2016, including:

Development of an Electricity Spot Market

Work is underway to develop a spot market for electricity trade that would provide an
alternative way for licensed Production Facilities to sell power to the PWP. The spot market
would operate alongside and in conjunction with the existing system of long-term PPAs and
PWPAs. During 2016, the Authority will continue to support work on the development and
finalisation of detailed market rules that would govern the operation of the spot market.

Disco and RAEC Price Control Review

The Authority will commence preparatory work for the new Disco/RAEC price confrol review;
including setting out the key issues and undertaking an initial review of costs.

Cyber Security Regulations

The establishment of a Cyber Security policy and implementation of Cyber Security protection
will be included in licenses of electricity sector companies to be effective from 1 January 2016.
The implementation plan includes several months of which the Authority will play an active role
in reviewing the technical control design.

Protection: Appropriate Person Criteria follow-up

The results of the re-audit of protection capability in 2015 was a helpful exercise in identifying
and recognising some good work, and targeting areas where more focus is required.

Given the outcome of the audits and the known challenges to progress within some licensees,
the Authority staff will monitor closely the progress that is being made by licensees with a view
to a formal re-audit in 2016.

Health and Safety Audit of Distribution and Supply

As with previous work programmes the 2016 programme includes actions to improve health
and safety standards throughout the sector, including unannounced health and safety audits
of electricity installations, full company audits of MJEC,MZEC and DPC.

Oman Electrical Standards and Electrical Regulations

Works have progressed in 2015 with respect to OES11 and other standards and the Authority will
continue to review other OES and work to update and issue revised and new OES throughout
2016 with a key focus on OES4.

Authority for Electricity Regulation, Oman



